
Board of Directors Meeting

Agenda and Meeting Book

THURSDAY, MARCH 25, 2021 FROM 8:30 AM TO 10:30 AM

MICROSOFT TEAMS MEETING



8:30 a.m. 1. Land Acknowledgement Acknowledgment All

 (a) Highlights of Key Messages - Page 5 Information All

 (b) Draft - Minutes of Open Session of the Feb 23, 2021 Board Meeting -
Page 6

Approval All

 (c) CEO Report - Page 10 Report G. Zegarac

 (d) Finance, Audit and Risk Management (FARM) Committee Chair's
Open Session Report - Page 19

Information Kevin Sullivan

 (e) Investment and Real Estate Committee (IREC) Chair's Open Session
Report - Page 23

Information Jack Winberg

8:50 a.m. 5. Consent Agenda   

 Coversheet and Report - Page 26   

 A - Draft Revised FARM Committe Mandate - Page 28   

 B - Draft Revised IREC Mandate - Page 37   

 C - Draft Revised HRGSR Committee Mandate - Page 43   

 D - Draft Revised Confidentiality Agreement - Page 50   

 E - Draft Revised Code of Conduct - Page 53   

9:00a.m. 6. Governance Documents Review Approval I. Ness

 Cover Sheet - Page 81   

9:15 a.m. 7. Communications Update Report C. MacKay

9:20 a.m. 8. Waterfront Toronto Priority Projects - Construction Update Report D. Kusturin

 Land Acknowledgement Statement - Page 4   

8:35 a.m. 2. Motion to Approve Meeting Agenda Approval S. Diamond

8:40 a.m. 3. Declaration of Conflicts of Interest Declaration All

8:45 a.m. 4. Chair’s Opening Remarks Information S. Diamond

 (f) Human Resources, Governance and Stakeholder Relations (HRGSR)
Committee Chair's Report - Page 24

Information Wende
Cartwright

 F - Draft Revised D&O Indemnification Agreement - Page 71   

 Presentation - Page 82   

Meeting Book - Board of Directors Meeting

Agenda - March 25, 2021 Board Meeting

Page 2 of 98



 Coversheet - Page 84   

10:20 a.m. 15. Resolution Arising from the Closed Session Approval All

 Presentation - Page 85   

9:30 a.m. 9. Motion to go into Closed Session Approval All

 Closed Session Agenda
The Board will discuss items 10 (a), (b) & (c), 11, 12, and 13, being,
consideration of the draft Minutes of the Closed Session February 23, 2021
meeting, the FARM Committee Chair’s Closed Session Report, the IREC
Chair’s Closed Session Report, Port Lands Risk Discussion, Update on
Quayside Matters and the Board Closed Session Discussion respectively,
in Closed Session as permitted by By-Law No.2 of the Corporation. The
exceptions relied for the discussion of item 10(a) in Closed Session is
provided in the minutes of February 23, 2021 Board meeting contained in
item 5(a) of this agenda, for item 10(b) & (c) is Section 6.1.1(I), for item 11
is Section 6.1.1(e), for item 12 is Section 6.1.1(I), and for item 13 is Section
6.1.1(b) of By-Law No. 2. The Board will continue in Open Session at the
end of the Closed Session to discuss and vote on any resolution(s)
pertaining to the Closed Session.

  

10:15 a.m. 14. Motion to go into Open Session Approval All

 Public Session Agenda   

 Draft Resolution - Page 98   

10:25 a.m. 16. Chair’s Closing Remarks Information S. Diamond

10:30 a.m. 17. Motion to Terminate the Meeting Approval All

Page 3 of 98



1 
 

 

 

  

 
Waterfront Toronto acknowledges that the land upon which we are undertaking our 
revitalization efforts is part of the traditional territory of the Mississaugas of the Credit First 
Nation and that Toronto is covered by Treaty 13 with the Mississaugas of the Credit First 
Nation (MCFN). In addition, Waterfront Toronto acknowledges that Toronto has 
historically been a gathering place for many Indigenous people including the 
Mississaugas of the Credit, the Anishnabeg, the Chippewa, the Haudenosaunee and the 
Wendat peoples, and is home to many First Nations, Inuit and Métis peoples today. 

                   Board of Directors Meeting  – March 25, 2021 
Item 1 – Land Acknowledgement   

  

Page 4 of 98



 

1 
 

Board of Directors Meeting  
March 25, 2021 

           Item 5(a) - Meeting Materials - Highlights of Key Messages 
 

Agenda Item Key Message 

5 (c) CEO Report The quarterly CEO Report presents an overview of the Board meeting and of 
the work of the Corporation, highlighting key issues and matters of importance 
from the perspective of the CEO.  A dashboard attached to the CEO Report 
illustrates the status of corporate, administrative and project matters and 
compares it to the preceding quarter.   

5 (d) FARM Committee Chair 
Report-open session 

 

The Chair of the FARM Committee will present his report on matters arising 
from the meeting of February 25, 2021.   In addition to the regular risk, audit 
and financial quarterly reporting, the Committee reviewed the proposed 
committee work plan for the next year, as well as the internal audit plan and 
the external audit plan for the Corporation. The Committee was also introduced 
to the new Executive Director of Philanthropy, Iain McMullan. 

5 (e) IREC Committee Chair 
Report-open session 

The Chair of the IREC Committee will present his report on matters arising from 
the meeting of March 11, 2021. The Committee received a presentation from 
management on the Anishnawbe Health Toronto Indigenous Hub as well as an 
update on Quayside related matters. 

5 (f) HRGSR Committee 
Chair’s Open Session Report 

The Chair of the HRGSR Committee will present her report on matters arising 
from the meeting of March 4, 2021. The Committee received a report from 
management on our Governance Document review, Board Evaluation, the 
Diversity, Equity and Inclusion initiatives and stakeholder engagement, as well 
as a presentation relating to the planned review from our internal auditor, MNP 
LLP on the Corporation’s  Resources and Succession Planning matters. The 
Committee reviewed and recommended for approval six of our board 
governance documents. 

6. Governance Document 
Review for approval 

Management will present the Code of Conduct, Directors Indemnity Agreement, 
Directors Confidentiality Agreement and the mandates for the three board 
committees, each of which has been recommended for approval by the HRGSR 
Committee. 

7. Communications Update Management will present an update on communications arising from recent 
activities. 

8. Priority Projects Update Management will present, for information, an update on our priority projects. 

10(b) FARM Committee Chair’s 
Closed Session Report 

The FARM Committee Chair will present a report on matters arising from the 
closed session of the FARM Committee meeting held on February 25, 2021, 
including the annual review of the Corporation’s risk appetite statement as well 
as a review of the Corporation’s Cyber Security Program. 

10(c) IREC Chair’s Closed 
Session Report 

The IREC Committee Chair will present a report on matters arising from the 
closed session of the March 11, 2021 IREC meeting. 

11.  PLFP Project Risk 
Discussion 

Management will present, for information, an update on the PLFP project risks 
that have been identified. 

12. Update on Quayside 
Matters 

The Board will be presented, for information, an update on the Quayside project. 

Page 5 of 98



 

1 
 

MINUTES of the Open Session Meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
Toronto Waterfront Revitalization Corporation  

Via Microsoft Teams Teleconference 
held Tuesday, February 23, 2021 at 2:00 p.m. local time 

 

PRESENT:  Stephen Diamond (Chair) 
  Jack Winberg  
  Christopher Voutsinas  
  Andrew MacLeod 
  Jeanhy Shim 
  Wende Cartwright 
  Michael Galego 
  Councillor Joe Cressy 
  Kevin Sullivan  
  Patrick Sheils 
   

ATTENDANCE WATERFRONT TORONTO 
George Zegarac (CEO, Waterfront Toronto) 
Meg Davis (Chief Development Officer)  
Lisa Taylor (Chief Financial Officer)  
Christopher Glaisek (Chief Planning and Design Officer) 
David Kusturin (Chief Project Officer) 
Julius Gombos (SVP, Project Delivery) 
Leslie Gash (SVP, Development) 
Kristina Verner (VP, Innovation, Sustainability & Prosperity) 
Cameron MacKay (VP, Strategic Communications and Engagement) 
Pina Mallozzi (VP, Design) 
Carol Webb (Senior Manager, Communications and Engagement) 
Catherine Murray (Senior Legal Counsel) 
Caroline Kim (Urban Design Project Manager, Planning and Design) 
Ian Ness (General Counsel)  
Erik Cunnington (Director, Development) 
Ed Chalupka (Director, Government Relations) 
Aina Adeleye (Board Administrator and Legal Assistant) 

 
Also, in attendance for all or part of the meeting were: 

 Shawn Tippins, Senior Analyst, Kira Heymans, Analyst, and Yassine Ben Rejeb, 
Portfolio Analyst, from Investment, Partnership and Innovation Branch of 
Infrastructure Canada  

 Glenn Campbell, Associate Deputy Minister, Chris Monahan, Director, Quantitative 
Policy and Research, Community Hubs Division, Melissa Pasquali, Lead Senior 
Advisor, Emily Bradford, Laura Robbins and James Andre, Policy Advisors, and 
Allyson Switzman, Manager, Agency Oversight Unit, Infrastructure Policy Division 
Ministry of Infrastructure at Ontario Ministry of Infrastructure  

 Tom Davidson, Director, Waterfront Initiatives, Office of Councillor Joe Cressy, City 
of Toronto 

 David Stonehouse, Director, Jayne Naiman, Project Manager, Waterfront 
Secretariat, City of Toronto.  

Page 6 of 98



 

2 
 

The Chair, Stephen Diamond, appointed Ian Ness to act as secretary of the meeting. 
 
With notice of the meeting having been sent to all Directors in accordance with the 
Corporation’s By-laws and a quorum of Directors being present, the Chair called the 
meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. and declared that the meeting was duly constituted for the 
transaction of business.   
 
1. Motion to Approve Agenda 

 
ON MOTION duly made by Councillor Cressy, seconded by Andrew MacLeod and 
carried, it was RESOLVED that the Agenda for the February 23, 2021 meeting be 
approved, as presented.   
 

2. Declaration of Conflicts of Interest 
  

There were no conflicts of interest declared. 
 

3. Chair’s Remarks 
 
Stephen Diamond welcomed and thanked everyone for joining the meeting 
remotely. Mr. Diamond explained that meetings continue to be held remotely, due 
to the ongoing COVID-19 Pandemic and the precautions recommended by public 
health officials on physical distancing. He added that the day’s meeting would be 
recorded and made available to the public afterwards.   
 
Mr. Diamond highlighted activities undertaken by the corporation in celebrating 
Black History month. These include blogs about Lucie and Thornton Blackburn and 
the video series featuring the inaugural artists in residence (Black Speculative Arts 
Movement (BSAM) Canada) that explains BSAM’s work on Afrofuturism.  
 
Mr. Diamond noted that the day’s meeting was called to discuss updates on the 
Quayside project. He explained that Management will be requesting approval 
regarding the Request for Qualifications relating to the Quayside project. 
Management will also be requesting approval of the Board in relation to certain real 
estate acquisition. He explained that these items will be discussed in the Closed 
Session. 
 

4. Consent Agenda 
 

ON MOTION duly made by Jack Winberg, seconded by Andrew MacLeod and 
carried, it was RESOLVED that the Minutes of the December 10, 2020 meeting of 
the Board of Directors be approved as presented. 
 

5. Motion to go into Closed Session 
 

In accordance with By-Law No. 2 of the Corporation and ON MOTION made by 
Christopher Voutsinas and seconded by Patrick Sheils and carried, the Board 
RESOLVED to go into Closed Session to discuss items 6, 7, 8 and 9.  The 

Page 7 of 98



 

3 
 

exception to the Open Meeting Law relied on for the discussion of item 6 in Closed 
Session is provided in the minutes of the open session of the December 10, 2020 
Board meeting contained in item 4 of the day’s agenda, for item 7 is Section 
6.1.1(I), for item 8 is Section 6.1.1(e) and for item 9 is Section 6.1.1(b). 
 

6. Consent Agenda - Draft Minutes of the Closed Session December 10, 2020 
Meeting  
 

7. Report of the IREC Chair  
 

8. Port Lands Risk Discussion 
 

9. Board Closed Session Discussion  
 

10. Motion to go into Open Session 
 

ON MOTION made by Patrick Sheils, seconded by Christopher Voutsinas and 
carried, the Board RESOLVED to go into Open Session.   

 
11. Resolutions Arising from the Closed Session 

 
ON MOTION duly made by Patrick Sheils and seconded by Jeanhy Shim and 
carried, it was RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Closed Session of the Board of 
Directors meeting held on December 10, 2020 be approved, as tabled.  
 
ON MOTION duly made by Jack Winberg and seconded by Chris Voutsinas and 
carried, it was RESOLVED that the Board of Directors (Board):  

 
1. approves the acquisition of certain lands and rights in lands on the terms 

and conditions set out in the report provided at the meeting (the 
“Acquisition”);  

 
2. ratifies the execution by Management of the Letter of Intent relating to the 

Acquisition; and  
 

3. authorizes the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Development Officer,  
together, to execute the purchase and sale agreements required to give 
effect to the Acquisition on behalf of the Corporation, substantially reflecting 
the terms presented to the Board, with such changes thereto as they in their 
discretion may approve.  

 
ON MOTION duly made by Wende Cartwright and seconded by Christopher Voutsinas 
and carried, it was RESOLVED that the Board of Directors (Board) approves the 
Quayside Developer Request For Qualification (RFQ) substantially in the form 
presented to the meeting. 
 
 
 

Page 8 of 98



 

4 
 

12. Chair’s Closing Remarks  
 
The Chair thanked everyone for attending the meeting.  
 

13. Termination of the Meeting   
 

There being no further business, ON MOTION made by Patrick Sheils, seconded 
by Christopher Voutsinas and carried, it was RESOLVED that the meeting be 
terminated at 3:17 p.m. local time. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

             
Board Chair      Secretary 

Page 9 of 98



 
Board of Directors Meeting – March 25, 2020 

Item 5c - CEO Report 
                                                          George Zegarac                                        

 

1 
 

   

 

 
I am pleased to provide this CEO Report for the upcoming quarterly Board meeting.  Since 
the last report, I have continued to be fully engaged with staff, governments and other 
stakeholders and agencies operating on the waterfront. 

 
Marine Use Strategy/Parliament Slip 
 
On March 8th we released an updated 2020 Marine Use Strategy as well as our vision for 
animating the Parliament Slip.  
 
The Marine Use Strategy is a signature piece in Waterfront Toronto’s vision for creating 
a dynamic and accessible waterfront – highlighting ways to reorient the city to the 
water.  The report outlines a plan to create an animated and accessible waterfront city for 
everyone and explores how to best balance the diverse uses of the harbour and maximize 
its value for residents and visitors alike.  It also highlights more opportunities for accessing 
the water – for swimming, kayaking, paddle boarding, and windsurfing etc.  
  
The Parliament Slip proposal is a complement to the Marine Use Strategy and a first step 
towards implementing the strategy.  The Parliament Slip proposal can bring many 
recommendations in the report to life including new swimming pools, mooring 
opportunities, better access to the water’s edge and floating structures on the water to 
accommodate concessions and a floating restaurant. In addition, the WaveDeck will 
enable us to create important aquatic habitat beneath its surface (similar to the 
WaveDecks further west).  Altogether this would create a very dynamic and welcoming 
public space. We will also begin to highlight more clearly the link between the Quayside 
RFQ/project and the Parliament Slip.  
 
Both the Marine Use Strategy and Parliament Slip announcements were very positive 
with excellent media coverage for the Parliament Slip in particular with the new renderings 
generating much attention.  Our key messages about reconnecting the city with the Lake 
appeared in most of the coverage with the floating restaurant in lakeside pool generating 
excitement. The Newsroom on our website experienced an unprecedented number of 
views.  
 

Quayside RFQ 

 
Subsequent to Board approval on February 23rd, the Quayside Developer Request for 
Qualifications (RFQ) was released on March 10, 2021.  Through this RFQ we are looking 
to shortlist qualified development teams with vision, passion and a commitment to design 
excellence to deliver a community that is dynamic, inclusive and resilient.  RFQ 
submissions are due May 12, 2021. 
 

Page 10 of 98



 
Board of Directors Meeting – March 25, 2020 

Item 5c - CEO Report 
                                                          George Zegarac                                        

 

2 
 

We have also created an online Roster of Interest that is open to everyone.  At other times 
we would have hosted in-person information sessions that would have allowed 
businesses to meet and exchange business cards. Since that is not possible, the Roster 
is designed to help companies express their interest in being part of a proponent team. 
The Roster provides a quick way for companies to share some basic information about 
themselves so that potential bidders can easily locate and connect with interested 
companies, if they choose.  We are hoping that this resource will help facilitate new 
collaborations, infuse new ideas and create opportunities for a broad array of businesses 
to contribute to achieving our objectives for Quayside.  
 
The RFP is planned to be released late Spring/early Summer with a view to selecting the 
winning proponent by the end of 2021/beginning of 2022. 
 
We will continue to engage our government partners throughout the process and will 
convene the next Quayside Stakeholder Advisory Committee Meeting on March 24th.  

  
COVID-19 
 
The Joint Health and Safety Committee and the Human Resources team continues to 
monitor the risks and requirements arising from the COVID-19 pandemic. It is guided by 
public health directives: have taken steps to protect staff, contractors and the public and 
have adapted Waterfront Toronto’s (WT) operations and actions in response to the 
pandemic. 
 
This month marks one year since the Corporation began working remotely. The 
decision to send everyone home was made to protect the health and safety of our staff 
and their families, and to do our part for the public health of our larger community. I am 
incredibly proud of how agile and resilient our staff have been throughout this period. 
 
I am also very pleased to report that the Corporation continues to operate effectively and 
efficiently with excellent collaboration across the organization and with our government 
partners.  Staff continue to use online meeting technology for day-to-day operations as 
well as for Board, Committee and Panel meetings.  We also continue to monitor the 
impacts of COVID-19 on our projects.  
 
Given the potential for a third wave and the beginning of an upward trend in cases yet 
again in Toronto, we continue to monitor the information from public health officials to 
determine a potential timeline for a return to the workplace.  
  

Resourcing 
 
As indicated in my previous Reports we continue to review workforce requirements to 

ensure our skills and capabilities meet current and future needs of the Corporation. 

Page 11 of 98



 
Board of Directors Meeting – March 25, 2020 

Item 5c - CEO Report 
                                                          George Zegarac                                        

 

3 
 

As part of Waterfront Toronto’s three-year Internal Audit Plan (2020/21 to 2022/23), MNP 
has been engaged to conduct a review of our resources and succession planning to 
ensure that Waterfront Toronto is well positioned to successfully deliver on our strategic 
plan and key initiatives by maintaining the necessary skills, capacity and institutional 
knowledge.  
 
The timeline for the review is between March and June 2021 and the scope areas of the 
review will focus on: 
 
1) Resource & Succession Planning;  
2) Retention and Employee Engagement; and  
3) Diversity, Equity and Inclusion.  
 
The review will assist Waterfront Toronto to effectively identify and proactively manage 
areas of exposure to help maintain continuity of operations and proactively adapt to 
changing resourcing needs as required. The results of MNPs Resource and Succession 
Planning Review will be presented at the September 2021 Finance, Audit & Risk 
Management (FARM) and Human Resources, Governance and Stakeholder Relations 
(HRGSR) Committee meetings. 
 

Diversity, Equity & Inclusion (DE&I) 
 
Waterfront Toronto is committed to creating a diverse, equitable and inclusive workforce 
and culture. Toronto is among the most ethnically diverse cities in the world and if the 
Corporation is to deliver on its promise to create a “waterfront for everyone” we must 
identify and remove barriers to the participation of Canada’s diverse communities in 
waterfront revitalization. 
 
A Request for Proposal will be issued in the upcoming weeks to engage an external DE&I 
consultant to assist our internal Human Resources and Management team to implement 
a comprehensive DE&I program for the Corporation intended to encourage diversity, 
promote equity and inclusion and confront racism.  
 
Waterfront Toronto staff, Design Review Panel Members and Board Directors have 
undertaken Indigenous Cultural Safety Training. The training program was completed in 
November of last year.  As a follow up to that training, we have started the process of 
engaging with the Provincial Health Services Authority to provide Waterfront Toronto staff, 
Board Directors and Design Review Panel members additional training, in a course 
called: From Bystander to Ally. This is a 5-hour course which builds upon the core 
training and focuses on learning how to be part of the social change needed to reconcile 
and reform our relationships with Indigenous people in Canada.  My Executive Assistant 
and I, having completed the Indigenous Cultural Safety Training, have also completed the 
next stage “From Bystander to Ally”. 
 

Page 12 of 98



 
Board of Directors Meeting – March 25, 2020 

Item 5c - CEO Report 
                                                          George Zegarac                                        

 

4 
 

Highlights of our other efforts include: 
 

 Our Human Resources team has joined a Government Community of Practice 
(GCOP) and together with other agency members form a round table to discuss 
and share ideas and information on Diversity, Equity and Inclusion. 
 

 Job postings have been enhanced to reinforce the Corporation’s commitment to 
build a representative workforce and fostering a positive and progressive 
workforce.   
 

 Research has been gathered on different job posting locations and websites that 
are accessible to Black and Indigenous People of Colour (BIPOC) professionals 
and minority groups to expand the reach of Waterfront Toronto’s recruitment efforts 
and ensure job postings are casting a wide net and achieving a diverse pool of 
candidates.  
 

 Enhancements to the recruitment process involving the analysis of policies, 
practices and systems and gathering data to measure and create targets to aid in 
reducing employment barriers.  
 

 Research is underway on mandatory training which will be delivered to all staff that 
will focus on fostering an inclusive culture free from discrimination in the workplace, 
unconscious bias, and valuing the diverse perspectives that all employees bring.  

 
To celebrate Black History Month in February the Corporation both developed content 
(blog and video created in-house) and promoted other waterfront organizations’ social 
media content. The Waterfront Toronto stories created for this year’s Black History Month 
reflects and honours Black history (legacy and connection to the West Don Lands) and 
profiles the new voices in a video series with the Waterfront Artists in Residence.  

 
Port Lands Flood Protection   
 
The tenth report of the Independent Capital Project Monitor appointed by the FARM 
Committee of the Board notes that the Port Lands Flood Protection project (PLFP) 
remains on budget, on schedule and has no material scope changes.  
 
Despite Toronto moving into a lockdown in November, the PLFP project continues 
uninterrupted. In response to the Provincial COVID-19 health guidelines EllisDon is 
limiting access to the construction site to Essential Construction workers only and have 
implemented screening protocols on site. There will be strict limits on site tours and 
visitors to the site, until further notice.   
 

Page 13 of 98



 
Board of Directors Meeting – March 25, 2020 

Item 5c - CEO Report 
                                                          George Zegarac                                        

 

5 
 

Waterfront Toronto continues to actively address potential risks with respect to utility 
relocations to mitigate against the potential for a schedule impact and delay in substantial 
performance and flood protection.  
 
The City of Toronto approved the Lake Shore Blvd East – Bridge and Public Realm 
Project (LSBE) funding on December 16, 2020 satisfying one of the conditions of the 
Capital Approval provided by the Board of Directors on December 10, 2020. Staff are 
working to satisfy the second condition and continue to negotiate the funding and delivery 
agreement with the City of Toronto. The project team is now working to complete 
construction documents and has initiated the tendering process for this $163M project 
which is scheduled to commence in September 2021. 
 
As you recall the Cherry Street North Bridge, the first of four, arrived on November 7, 
2020 that will connect the new Villiers Island to Toronto, and the revitalized Port Lands.  
 
As the remaining three bridges arrive (Cherry Street North Vehicular Bridge, Cherry Street 
South and Commissioner Bridge) we will be working on a communications strategy to 
build on the success of the arrival of the first bridge.  
 

Indigenous Consultation  
 
Waterfront Toronto is committed to ongoing engagement with Indigenous communities 
and specifically to deepen our relationship with the Mississaugas of the Credit First Nation 
(MCFN) as the Corporation moves forward with the PLFP and Quayside projects.   
     
We continue discussions with MCFN regarding its potential participation and role in 
Quayside through joint MCFN/WT working groups that are meeting on a regular basis.  
 
In addition, both MCFN and Waterfront Toronto are keen to advance the idea of locating 
an Indigenous Centre on the waterfront. The Centre would be of national significance and 
representative of all First Nations Cultures from coast-to-coast.  Programming would be 
led by First Nations senior leadership with MCFN serving as the Host Nation and 
convening the discussion. The working group, comprised of staff from both MCFN and 
WT are currently exploring the vision, features and potential locations on the waterfront. 
This preliminary work could be further explored in a formal feasibility study that would 
help to determine the appropriate scope, optimal site and funding requirements for the 
Centre.   
 
Waterfront Toronto together with a representative from the Mississaugas of the Credit 
First Nations, selected Matthew Hickey as the Design Review Panel’s first Indigenous 
Design Expert.  Matthew is Mohawk from the Six Nations of the Grand River Reserve, a 
partner at Two Row Architect with 14 years of Indigenous design experience, a sessional 
instructor at the Ontario College of Art and Design, and a Member of the Board of 
Artscape Toronto and he attended his first meeting of the DRP January 27, 2021.  He is 

Page 14 of 98



 
Board of Directors Meeting – March 25, 2020 

Item 5c - CEO Report 
                                                          George Zegarac                                        

 

6 
 

also the design lead for the indigenous components of Anishnawbe Health Toronto 
project on Block 10 in the West Don Lands.   
 

Signature Projects  
 
The Fundraising Action Plan sets out the Corporation’s fundraising strategy for the 
Signature Projects and the implementation actions to be taken over the period January 
1, 2020 to March 31, 2022.  Waterfront Toronto’s Rolling Five-Year Strategic Plan 
includes an annual fundraising activities budget of $0.9 million (net of WT indirect staff 
costs of $0.4 million), comprising third party legal, communications and fundraising 
consulting advisory, as well as provision for up to three direct fundraising staff.    
 
Since our work to implement the fundraising strategy is focused on building capabilities 
and developing a campaign plan, we have brought on board Iain McMullan, Executive 
Director of Philanthropy for Waterfront Toronto. Iain is currently meeting with some former 
and current WT Board members to help inform the go forward strategy.  In addition, we 
have recruited a fundraising coordinator to assist with prospect researching to help build 
out Waterfront Toronto’s donor pipeline.  
 
The Signature Projects include: 
 

 enhancement of the Jack Layton Ferry Terminal;  

 creation of a continuous three-kilometre Water’s Edge Waterfront Walk;  

 creation of a regional Destination Playground as part of the larger Promontory 
Park; and 

 the identification and development of a landmark institution that will define the 
character of the waterfront.   

 
We continue to advance the design for the Destination Playground and associated 
pavilion.  As part of the design process, we are advancing an accessibility plan, a 
concession feasibility analysis and have engaged Minokamik, an indigenous collective to 
implement a process for developing an indigenous placemaking strategy for the 
playground. In addition, we have been engaged in bi-weekly meetings with a Governance 
Working Group that includes Waterfront Toronto and Parks, Forestry and Recreation staff 
from the City of Toronto.  Collectively we have been developing an operations and 
maintenance strategy for the playground.   
 
We continue to advance work on both the City-Waterfront Toronto Fundraising MOU 
Term Sheet and the WT Gift Acceptance Policy with a view to a City staff report to Council 
in the June cycle of this year.  
 
We have also begun to explore the concept of establishing a Waterfront Toronto volunteer 
group to assist the Corporation in organizing activities and raise awareness of waterfront 
revitalization.  

Page 15 of 98



 
Board of Directors Meeting – March 25, 2020 

Item 5c - CEO Report 
                                                          George Zegarac                                        

 

7 
 

 

Government Oversight 
 
In 2020, The Intergovernmental Steering Committee (IGSC) directed that a review of 

Waterfront Toronto’s mandate, including Waterfront Toronto’s mandate term, be 

undertaken to determine whether a mandate extension, supported by a new long-term 

vision for waterfront revitalization, is appropriate. As part of the review KPMG was 

retained to update the findings of the Waterfront Strategic Review Report undertaken in 

2015. To inform their update KPMG has interviewed members of the Waterfront Toronto 

Senior Management Team as well as the Chair of the Board and Board Committee Chairs 

in mid-December. 

 

Concurrent with KPMG’s work, governments have had several meetings with Waterfront 
Toronto to address several areas including assessing strengths and weakness of 
waterfront revitalization delivery, reviewing WT's financial outlook and sustainability, 
clarifying roles and responsibilities among various waterfront agencies and Waterfront 
Toronto and determine how WT's current mandate (2028), and beyond if applicable, 
aligns with WT's existing and proposed scope of work. In addition, government partners 
are examining how they can improve their coordination to ensure proper support to 
assist WT in fulfilling its mandate. 

 

It is anticipated that the final report will be completed by KPMG by the end of March. The 
IGSC will review the final report and recommendations at its April 15th meeting. It is 
anticipated that there will be a City staff report to Council early this summer. 

 
 
Sincerely, 
George Zegarac 
President and CEO

Page 16 of 98



 
Board of Directors Meeting – March 25, 2020 

Item 5c - CEO Report 
                                                          George Zegarac                                        

 

8 
 

Appendix 1 – Corporate Dashboard and Summary of Dashboard Changes 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17 of 98



 
Board of Directors Meeting – March 25, 2020 

Item 5c - CEO Report 
                                                          George Zegarac                                        

 

9 
 

 

Page 18 of 98



 

1 
1 

 

Board Meeting – March 25, 2021 

Item 5 d) – Finance, Audit & Risk Management Committee  

Chair’s Open Session Report 

Kevin Sullivan 

 

The Finance, Audit & Risk Management (FARM) Committee met virtually on February 25, 

2021.  Quorum was achieved with all four members attending the meeting via Microsoft 

Teams. 

There are nine items to report on, all for information:  

1. FARM Committee 2021 Workplan  

2. Corporate and Project Reporting Dashboards and Reports 

3. Internal Audit Plan Update 

4. External Audit Plan 2020/21 

5. Port Lands Flood Protection (PLFP) Independent Capital Monitor Report 

6. Additional Fees to Internal Auditor - reported in camera 

7. Annual Review – Risk Appetite Statement – reported in camera 

8. Cyber Security Program and Follow up Audit – reported in camera, and 

9. Project Risks Discussion – reported in camera. 

 

Note that Items 6 - 9 above are reported under Agenda Item 10b in the Closed Session. 

 

1. FARM Committee 2021 Workplan 

 The FARM Committee approved a Workplan of the key items for review 

and/or approval at each of its 2021 quarterly scheduled meetings 

 The workplan was prepared by Management based on the FARM 

Committee mandate, and ensures and demonstrates how and when the 

FARM Committee will fulfill its core responsibilities 

 The Committee requested Management consider the responsibility for 

environmental, social and governance (ESG) matters in the Board 

Committee mandates. 

 It should be noted that this workplan reflects the updated FARM Committee 

mandate being presented for Board approval under Item 6 at today’s 

meeting.  

 

2. Corporate & Project Reporting Dashboards and Reports 

 Management presented a macro dashboard that was divided into three 

areas: 

o 2020/21 Corporate Plan Performance; 

o Finance & Administration; and 

o Capital Projects. 

Page 19 of 98



 

2 
2 

 

Board Meeting – March 25, 2021 

Item 5 d) – Finance, Audit & Risk Management Committee  

Chair’s Open Session Report 

Kevin Sullivan 

 All key areas of the Macro Dashboard are green (i.e. no key issues to be 

aware of), except for the following three items which are yellow or tracking 

behind plan: 

o One 2020/21 Corporate Plan item (Capital Investment) largely due 

to deferral of some Port Lands Flood Protection (PLFP) project 

elements into 2021/22 to address project challenges and still 

maintain the 2024 completion date; and 

o Two areas of Capital Projects (PLFP project and Complete 

Communities) which are yellow due to elevated risks and/or budget 

pressures. 

 The Committee is satisfied that Management is handling these areas 

effectively. 

 The macro dashboard is supported by several supplementary reports 

including: 

o 2020/21 Corporate Plan Performance: other than annual capital 

investment are noted above, which is expected to achieve 70% of 

plan ($277M of $393M), all other areas namely, key deliverables, 

revenues and performance targets, are on track to achieve >=80% 

of plan for 2020/21.  WTs 2020/21 corporate operating costs are 

tracking to be under budget by year end, largely due to lower HR 

costs. 

o Enterprise Risk Management: - no significant concerns, all high 

inherent risk areas are being adequately managed through mitigation 

plans; Business Continuity Plan refresh planned in March 2021.   

o Audit - no significant concerns, internal audit plan proceeding in 

accordance with plan. Ontario Auditor General Value-for-Money 

follow-up audit report issued in Dec 2020, noting 91% 

implementation rate by WT.  Cybersecurity follow-up audit completed 

Feb 2021 (refer to agenda Item 10b). 

o Liquidity/ Cash Flow Management - no significant concerns, positive 

cash balance > $50M and no current requirement to borrow; 

Government borrowing consent of $40M to March 2023. Further 

amendment request to term and limit to enhance liquidity tools 

targeted to be submitted to governments April 2021. 

o Financial reporting compliance - no concerns, in line with plan. The 

Committee received and discussed the December 31, 2020 

unaudited, interim financial statements.  The Committee requested 

that Management the consider applicability of climate risk disclosure 

for future financial statements.  Consistent with past practice, 

Management does not request the Board to approve these as they 

are unaudited, however directs that they be received; and 

Page 20 of 98

https://waterfrontoronto.ca/nbe/wcm/connect/waterfront/b6cc5db6-bd98-4080-b6c0-505a866c2acd/Meeting+Book+-+Finance%2C+Audit+%26+Risk+Management+Committee+-+February+25%2C+2021+%28final%29.pdf?MOD=AJPERES&CONVERT_TO=url&CACHEID=b6cc5db6-bd98-4080-b6c0-505a866c2acd
https://waterfrontoronto.boardeffect.com/workrooms/1306/books/376537/bookfolders/7819825/preview


 

3 
3 

 

Board Meeting – March 25, 2021 

Item 5 d) – Finance, Audit & Risk Management Committee  

Chair’s Open Session Report 

Kevin Sullivan 

o Capital projects dashboards – Dashboards were included for the 

$1.185 billion PLFP project and the $66.5 million Bayside External 

Services project, the latter of which is expected to be $4.5 million 

(6.8%) over budget due primarily to constructability issues.  The 

PLFP project remains on budget and on schedule.  The contingency 

balance is approx. $41.3 million (5% of hard costs) however is 

expected to increase because of successful negotiations regarding 

utilities cost sharing.  It was noted that the project schedule will be 

re-baselined to account for the significant amount of schedule 

resequencing that has taken place to address project challenges 

while keeping the overall completion date of March 2024 on track.  

The FARM Committee requested that Management circulate the re-

baselined summary schedule to the Committee in advance of the 

next Committee meeting on May 27, 2021. 

 Management also presented reports and answered questions related to 

procurement exceptions, regulatory compliance, status of the fundraising 

action plan (with clarification on the 2021/22 budget of $1.3M for 

fundraising) and the impacts of COVID-19.  Overall, COVID-19 has had a 

negative financial impact to the Corporation approx. $2.1M to date, being a 

combination of increased costs to the PLFP project ($1.8M), reduced 

parking revenues from interim property holdings ($0.7M), offset by savings 

due to the remote work situation ($0.4M).  

 Waterfront Toronto’s new Executive Director, Philanthropy, Iain McMullan 

was introduced to the Committee. 

 

3. Internal Audit Plan Update 

 The Committee received an update from the Corporation’s internal auditors, 

MNP LLP pertaining to the approved Three Year (2020/21 – 2022/23) 

Internal Audit Plan, a summary of which is outlined below: 

No. Audit Area Fiscal Year/ 
Quarter 

1 Performance Measurement Framework Completed 

2 HR Resource & Succession Planning Underway 

3 ERP System Processes & Internal Controls Q2 2021/22 

4 Project Management Process Controls Q4 2021/22 

5 Communications Processes and Controls Q2 2022/23 

6 Records & Information Management Q4 2022/23 

 

 MNP presented the scope of the HR Resource and Succession Planning 

review to be undertaken between March and June 2020.  This review, which 

Page 21 of 98



 

4 
4 

 

Board Meeting – March 25, 2021 

Item 5 d) – Finance, Audit & Risk Management Committee  

Chair’s Open Session Report 

Kevin Sullivan 

is forward looking in nature, is focused on assessing whether we have the 

right resources and skill sets as well as sufficient capacity, to deliver on the 

projects outlined in the Corporation’s rolling five-year strategic plan.  The 

review will apply a diversity, equity and inclusion lens as well as focus on 

employee retention and engagement. 

 In addition to the six audits outlined above, MNP also completed a follow up 

review of the recommendations included in their 2018 Cyber Security audit.  

The results from this are reported in the FARM Chair Closed Session report 

under item 10b. 

 
4. External Audit Plan 2020/21 

 BDO LLP (BDO) presented their Planning Report for the audit of the 

Corporation’s March 31, 2021 financial statements. 

 Planning materiality is set at $2.5 million, up from $2 million last year and 

consistent with WTs increase in expenditure levels. 

 BDO completed its interim fieldwork in January 2021 and will complete their 

audit in the period April 26 to May 7, 2021. 

 The FARM Committee is satisfied with the audit approach and approved the 

External Audit Plan. 

 The audited financial statements will be presented to the Board for approval 

at the June 24, 2021 Board meeting. 

 It was noted that this is the fifth year of BDOs five-year contract term and 

consistent with WTs procurement policy, management will be issuing a 

competitive procurement for the audit later in 2021.  

 

5. Port Lands Flood Protection (PLFP) Independent Capital Monitor Report 

 BTY Consulting LLP (BTY) presented their tenth report as Independent 

Capital Monitor for the PLFP project and noted no issues that would have a 

substantial impact and/or risk to the PLFP project.  Specifically, BTY 

reported that: 

o Budget remains at $1.185 billion 

o Schedule remains at March 31, 2024 project completion date 

o No scope changes have been made to the project this quarter and 

to date 

o The processes for the 90% stage gate budget estimates completed 

in October/ November 2020 were robust and in line with industry 

practice. 

 

 

Page 22 of 98



  

1 
 

Board of Directors Meeting – March 25, 2021 

Item 5 e – Investment and Real Estate Committee (IREC)  

Chair’s Open Session Report 

Jack Winberg 

   

 

The Investment and Real Estate Committee (“IREC” or the “Committee”) met on March 11, 2021.  

This report reflects a summary of the Committee’s discussions in the Open Session of the meeting.  

A quorum was achieved, and Kevin Sullivan, Wende Cartwright, Jeanhy Shim, Patrick Sheils and 

Michael Galego also attended the meeting. 

I wish to report on the items set out below which were discussed at the March 11, 2021 Committee 

meeting: 

1. Consent Agenda – Development Dashboard 
2. Development Project – Anishnawbe Health Toronto (AHT) Indigenous Hub (Block 10) Project 

Overview 
3. Update on Quayside Matters  

 
1. Consent Agenda – Development Dashboard 
 

The Development Dashboard was taken as read.  The Committee acknowledged the additional 
information providing update status on each project reported in the dashboard.    
 

2. Development Project – Anishnawbe Health Toronto (AHT) Indigenous Hub (Block 10) 
Project Overview 
 
Michael Wolfe, Innovation & Prosperity Manager presented the Indigenous Hub which includes 
the AHT Community Health Centre, TEEC (Training Education and Employment 
Centre), retail, condominiums and market rental units.  AHT has partnered with Dream Kilmer 
and Tricon.  The Committee had questions on design, zoning and lessons learned.  
 

3. Update on Quayside Matters 
 

Cameron MacKay, Vice President Strategic Communications and Engagement reported on 
the release of the Corporation’s vision for Parliament Slip on March 8, 2021 and on the 
release of the Quayside Request for Qualifications (RFQ) on March 10, 2021.   
 
The Parliament Slip release generated 13 print and online articles as of the time of the report 
with additional articles continuing to be published by trade publications. In addition, there 
were three broadcast segments and four radio clips. Tone across media was positive with 
solid message pull through particularly about reconnecting the city with its lake appeared in 
most coverage. The Corporation’s website experienced over 1,300 page views.   
 
Regarding the RFQ release as of the time of the report, there were eight news articles 
written, three television clips and one radio spot. Traffic to the Corporation's website more 
than doubled and the RFQ newsroom post had more than 1,000 page views before the end 
of Wednesday March 10th. The Quayside website (quaysideto.ca) experienced a 60% 
increase in page views.   
 
Message pull through was good with key messages getting picked up across coverage, such 
as the need to close service gaps, the need for more public spaces and the need for aging in 
place opportunities. Directors were reminded that the key communications objective of the 
Quayside RFQ was to drive traffic to the RFQ document on our procurement portal 

(Bonfire).   

Page 23 of 98



  

1 
 

Board of Directors Meeting – March 25, 2021 

Item 5(f) – Human Resources Governance and Stakeholder 

Relations (HRGSR) Committee Chair’s Open Session Report 

Wende Cartwright 

  

 

The HRGSR Committee met on March 4, 2021 via Microsoft Teams. A quorum was achieved, 

Patrick Sheils and Stephen Diamond also attended the meeting. 

I wish to report on the items set out below which were discussed at the March 4, 2021 

Committee meeting: 

1. Governance Document Review (update and approval) 
2. 2021 Board Evaluation Overview 
3. Human Resources Update (Open Session) 
4. Stakeholder Relationship Plan 
5. Update on Tri-government Strategic Review of Waterfront Toronto Mandate 
6. Human Resources Update (Closed Session) 

 
1. Governance Document Review (update and approval) 
 

The Committee received an update concerning the review of governance documents and 
procedures currently being undertaken by the Corporation. The mandate for the Corporate 
Secretary was approved by the Board in December 2021, and at this meeting, the 
Committee recommended for approval by the Board at the Board meeting of March 25, 
2021 six further documents consisting of the Directors Confidentiality Agreement, Indemnity 
Agreement, Code of Conduct and the mandates for each of FARM, IREC and HRGSR. The 
balance of the documents will be considered in June.  
 

2. 2021 Board Evaluation Overview 
 
The Committee received an update from our General Counsel.  Consistent with our 
mandate, as well as best practices, in 2021 we will be conducting a survey of our 
existing Board members to evaluate existing strengths as well as possible areas for 
improvement.  
 

3. Human Resources Update  
 

Rose Desrochers, VP Human Resources and Administration, provided a Human 

Resources update to the Committee, with a focus on the Diversity, Equity and Inclusion 

activities that have been undertaken by the Corporation so far and that an RFP will be 

issued in the upcoming weeks to engage a consultant to develop and implement a 

comprehensive Diversity, Equity and Inclusion program that will be sustainable for the 

future.  In particular, the Committee received an update on Indigenous engagement and 

involvement as well as the activities of the Corporation in creating an inclusive workplace 

and celebrating Black History month.  

Lisa Taylor, Chief Financial Officer, advised the Committee that as part of the 

Corporation’s three-year Internal Audit Plan, MNP has been engaged to conduct a 

review of our resources and succession planning to ensure that the Corporation is well 

positioned to successfully deliver on our strategic plan and key initiatives by retaining the 

necessary skill, capacity and institutional knowledge to ensure operational resilience.  It 

Page 24 of 98



  

2 
 

Board of Directors Meeting – March 25, 2021 

Item 5(f) – Human Resources Governance and Stakeholder 

Relations (HRGSR) Committee Chair’s Open Session Report 

Wende Cartwright 

will also assist the Corporation to identify areas of exposure and proactively manage any 

exposure to help maintain continuity of operations and adapt to changing resourcing 

needs as required. The timing for the review will be between March and June 2021 and 

the results will be presented at the September 15, 2021 HRGSR Committee meeting.  

4. Stakeholder Relationship Plan 
 
Cameron MacKay, VP Strategic Communications and Engagement reported to the 
Committee that a procurement for a vendor to provide reputation tracking and improvement 
services to the Corporation, was issued. The Request for Proposals closed on March 12, 
2021 and a kick-off meeting with the winning proponent is expected in late April/early May.   
 
Michela Comparey, Communications and Public Engagement Specialist reported to the 
committee about Waterfront Toronto’s engagement on Social Media. Staff confirmed that 
this analysis will be considered as part of the overhaul of Waterfront Toronto’s website. The 
committee also asked about strategies to keep people engaged once they visit the website. 
 

5. Update on Tri-government Strategic Review of Waterfront Toronto Mandate 
 
Edward Chalupka, Director of Government Relations provided an update to the Committee 
on the tri-government strategic review currently underway.   The Intergovernmental Steering 
Committee (IGSC) directed that a review of Waterfront Toronto’s mandate, including 
Waterfront Toronto’s mandate term, be undertaken to determine whether a mandate 
extension, supported by a new long-term vision for waterfront revitalization, is appropriate. 
As part of the review KPMG was retained to update the findings of the Waterfront Strategic 
Review Report undertaken in 2015. To inform their update KPMG has interviewed members 
of the Waterfront Toronto Senior Management Team as well as the Chair of the Board and 
committees in mid-December. 
 
Concurrent with KPMG’s work, governments have undertaken several workshops to 
address several areas including assessing strengths and weakness of waterfront 
revitalization delivery, reviewing Waterfront Toronto's (WT) financial outlook and 
sustainability, clarifying roles and responsibilities among various waterfront agencies and 
Waterfront Toronto and determine how WT's current mandate (2028), and beyond if 
applicable, aligns with WT's existing and proposed scope of work.  In addition, government 
partners are examining how they are coordinating with one another to support WT in 
fulfilling its mandate. 
 
It is anticipated that the final report will be completed by KPMG by the end of March. The 
IGSC will review the final report and recommendations at its April 15th meeting.  It is 
anticipated that there will be a City staff report to Council early this summer.  
 
 

6. Human Resources Update Closed Session (Public Sector Salary Disclosure) 
 
Rose Desrochers, VP Human Resources and Administration provided an update to the 

Committee on the 2020 Public Sector Salary Disclosure (PSSD) that will be made 

publicly available on Ontario.ca as part of the PSSD Compilation, no later than March 

31st. 

Page 25 of 98



 

1 
 

 

 

  

 

Purpose For approval. 

Areas of note/ 
Key issues 

As previously reported, the Corporation has undertaken a review of its key 
Board governance documents to ensure they continue to reflect best 
practices.  The documents have been reviewed by internal legal counsel, 
members of the Senior Management Team and external counsel.   
 
There are a total of 13 documents to be considered. However, to allow 
sufficient time for consideration, at this meeting we are only asking that the 
Board approve the following six governance documents in the form attached.  
On March 4, 2021 the HRGSR Committee recommended that the Board 
approve each of the documents, 
 
The attached documents will be considered at this meeting: 
 
A. Mandate of Finance, Audit and Risk Management (FARM) Committee 
B. Mandate of Investment and Real Estate (IREC) Committee 
C. Mandate of Human Resources, Governance and Stakeholder 

Relationship (HRGSR) Committee 
D. Board Confidentiality Agreement 
E. Board Code of Conduct 
F. Director and Officer Indemnity Agreement 
 
At the invitation of the Chair, our external counsel, Barry Reiter, will be joining 
the meeting as well. Mr. Reiter is the Chair of the Corporate Governance & 
Director Protection practice at Bennett Jones LLP. 
 
The documents to be considered at a subsequent meeting are: 
 
1. By law #1. General By Law 
2. By law #2. Open meeting by law 
3. By law #3. Board remuneration  
4. Mandate of the Board 
5. Mandate of the Board Chair 
6. Mandate of the CEO 
7. Wrongdoing Policy 

 

Resolution/ 

Next Steps 

ON MOTION duly made, seconded, and carried, be it RESOLVED that  the 
Board approve the listed governance documents of the Corporation, each in 
the form presented to the meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Board of Directors Meeting  
March 25, 2021 

Item 6 - Governance Documents Review  

 Ian Ness 

Page 26 of 98



 

2 
 

Report on Board Governance Review 
 
March 25, 2021 
 
 
The Corporation has identified 14 key board governance documents to be reviewed or created to 
ensure that we continue to meet best practices.  The documents are as follows: 
 
1. By law # 1, (general corporate by law) 
2. By law # 2 (open meeting law requirements) 
3. By law # 3 (Board remuneration) 
4. Board Mandate 
5. Wrongdoing Policy 
6. Role of the Board Chair  
7. Role of the CEO 
8. Role of the Corporate Secretary 
9. FARM Committee Mandate 
10. IREC Committee Mandate 
11. HRGSR Committee Mandate 
12. Directors Code of Conduct 
13. Directors Confidentiality Agreement 
14. Directors Indemnity 
 
With the exception of the Role of the Corporate Secretary and By Law #3, each of the documents 
were in existence at the time of initial review. However, they have not been thoroughly reviewed 
or updated for, in some cases, several years.  Accordingly, it was determined that the documents 
should be reviewed at this time.  This is also consistent with the recommendations of our internal 
auditor, MNP LLP, and several directors have requested that the documents be reviewed. 
 
In February 2020, each of the committee chairs were requested to provide their input on the roles 
and responsibilities of their committees and whether the obligations were appropriate and were 
manageable within the time available. In addition, members of the Senior Management Team with 
responsibility for the activities of one or more of the committees have reviewed, and provided 
comment upon, the committee mandate terms.  Internal legal counsel received all the comments, 
reviewed the applicable documentation from other similarly situated organizations and prepared 
revised drafts of each of the documents. Our CEO provided his input and the documentation has 
been reviewed and revised by our external legal advisors from Bennett Jones LLP. 
 
The Role of the Corporate Secretary was approved by the Board in December 2020. 
 
The documents 9 through 14 listed above were recommended by HRGSR for approval and are 
now being presented to the board for approval.  The balance of the documentation will be 
presented for consideration at a subsequent meeting. 
 
 
 
Ian Ness 
General Counsel 
Waterfront Toronto 
 

Page 27 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670615v3   

Draft March 11, 2021 

 

  
 

FINANCE, AUDIT, AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MANDATE 

OF 

TORONTO WATERFRONT REVITALIZATION CORPORATION 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670615v3   

 

 

 

TORONTO WATERFRONT REVITALIZATION CORPORATION 

Finance, Audit, and Risk Management Committee Mandate 

Effective Date: [●], 2021 
  

Purpose 

The Finance, Audit and Risk Management Committee (the "Committee") is a committee of the 
board of directors (the "Board of Directors") of the Toronto Waterfront Revitalization Corporation 
(the "Corporation"). The primary function of the Committee is to assist the Corporation in fulfilling 
its oversight responsibilities by evaluating and making recommendations to the Board of Directors 
with respect to: 

(i) Financial Planning; 

(ii) Financial reporting; 

(iii) Internal controls; 

(iv)  External auditor, including performance, qualifications, independence, and their 
audit of the financial statements of the Corporation; 

(v) Internal audit function; 

(vi) Government audit recommendations ; 

(vii) Enterprise risk management: 

(viii) Project risk Management:  

(ix) Fundraising; and 

(x) Procurement 

 

The management of the Corporation is responsible for preparing the financial statements, and 
the external auditor of the Corporation are responsible for auditing those financial statements. 

Authority of the Committee 

1. The Board of Directors authorizes the Committee to: 

(a) Perform its responsibilities under this Mandate; 

Page 29 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670615v3   

 

 - 2 -  

 

(b) Provide strategic review and advice in respect of, and monitor compliance by the 
Corporation with, the matters described in this Mandate;  

(c) Oversee the Corporation's risk management policies relevant to this Mandate and 
ensure that those policies are implemented appropriately; 

(d) Require the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation (the "Chief Executive 
Officer"), the Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation (the "Chief Financial 
Officer"), and other senior officers of the Corporation, and invite any others it 
deems to have relevant experience and expertise, to attend, or participate in, any 
meeting of the Committee (each, a "Meeting") from time to time;  

(e) Communicate expectations and the nature, timing and extent of the Committee's 
informational needs to management of the Corporation; and 

(f) Oversee any specific risk-related task assigned to the Committee by the Board of 
Directors. 

2. The Committee may access all records and information of the Corporation that it 
considers necessary or desirable for the performance of its duties. The Committee 
may gather information relevant to any matters within its scope of responsibility 
and retain, at the expense of the Corporation, independent advisors to assist the 
Committee in performing its duties. Each member of the Committee shall be entitled, 

to the fullest extent permitted by law, to rely on the accuracy of information provided by 
persons from within or from outside the Corporation provided that the member acts in good 
faith and exercises their judgement reasonably in the circumstances. 

 

Composition and Procedures of the Committee 

3. The Committee will be appointed by the Board of Directors and will be composed of no 
fewer than three Directors (each, a "Member"). The Committee will be chaired by a 
member of the Board of Directors (each, a "Director") appointed by the Board of Directors 
(the "Chair of the Committee"). The Corporate Secretary of the Corporation (the 
"Corporate Secretary") will be the secretary of the Committee and may appoint a 
nominee to act as recording secretary for a Meeting. 

4. At least one Member should be a member in good standing of a recognized professional 
accounting body.  

5. Each Member will be financially literate, meaning that he or she is able to read and 
understand a set of financial statements that present a breadth and level of complexity of 
accounting issues that are generally comparable to those that can reasonably be expected 
to be raised by the financial statements of the Corporation. Where appropriate, Members 
should enhance their familiarity with financial, audit, accounting, risk management and 
other areas relevant to their responsibilities by maintaining an awareness and 
understanding of trends and best practices in these areas. The Corporation and its internal 
and external auditors will support Members in these efforts. 

6. Each Member will serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors and will cease to be a 
Member (i) when determined by the Board of Directors, (ii) upon removal by the Board of 

Page 30 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670615v3   

 

 - 3 -  

 

Directors, (iii) upon termination of the Member's tenure as a Director for any reason 
whatsoever, or (iv) as required the by-laws or policies of the Corporation or by law. 

7. The Board of Directors may fill vacancies in the Committee from time to time, and for the 
period of time that a vacancy exists the remaining Members may exercise all powers of 
the Committee, provided that a quorum of Members is in attendance at a Meeting at which 
those powers are exercised.  

Meetings of the Committee 

8. The Chair of the Committee, the Corporate Secretary or any two Members may call 
Meetings. The external auditor of the Corporation may call Meetings and may participate 
in each Meeting unless the Chair of the Committee determines otherwise. 

9. Notice of a Meeting, including the date, time, and place of the Meeting, must be provided 
to each Member at least two days before the date of the Meeting, unless any of these 
requirements is waived by all Members. The agenda of the Meeting and supporting 
materials (if any) must be given to each Member prior to the Meeting to allow each Member 
to properly review and consider the agenda and materials. 

10. The Chair of the Committee, in consultation with the Members, and, as he or she considers 
appropriate, with any of the other Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the Corporate 
Secretary and other senior officers, is responsible for establishing the agenda of each 
Meeting. 

11. The powers and authority of the Committee may be exercised at a Meeting only if a 
quorum is present. 

12. A quorum for a Meeting is two Members. 

13. Members may attend any Meeting in person or by telephone, video or other digital means.   

14. A Director, who is not a Member, may attend, but not vote at, a Meeting. The Chief 
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer will be invited to all Meetings (other than 
closed Meetings), but may not vote at Meetings. 

15. If the Chair of the Committee is unable to attend a Meeting, the other Members in the 
attendance at the Meeting may appoint a Member to chair the Meeting.    

16. The Chair of the Committee or the substitute chair (as applicable) may vote on any matter 
at a Meeting, but will not have a second or casting vote. 

17. The Corporate Secretary or his or her nominee (if applicable) will prepare and maintain 
minutes of each Meeting. Minutes will be available to each Member and to any other 
Director upon request. 

Duties and Responsibilities of the Committee 

The Committee will evaluate and make recommendations to the Board of Directors with respect 
to, or approve as indicated, the following matters: 

Page 31 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670615v3   

 

 - 4 -  

 

(a) General Responsibilities 

The Committee will: 

(i) Create and maintain a Committee work plan for the year, and monitor its 
performance; 

(ii) Review and assess this Mandate at least annually, and refer its assessment and 
any proposed revisions to the Human Resources, Governance and Stakeholder 
Relations Committee; 

(iii) Review and report to the Board of Directors periodically on compliance by the 
Corporation with the matters provided for in this Mandate and make 
recommendations, if any, in connection therewith as may be necessary or 
appropriate; 

(iv) Report and make recommendations periodically to the Board of Directors on the 
matters covered by this Mandate; and 

(v) Perform any other activities consistent with this Mandate, the by-laws of the 
Corporation, and applicable law, as the Committee or the Board of Directors 
deems necessary or appropriate. 

(b) Financial Reporting 

The Committee will: 

(i) Review with management the annual and quarterly financial statements of the 
Corporation; 

(ii) Review reports from the external auditor of the Corporation concerning the annual 
financial statements and any other matters, and management's response to such 
reports, if appropriate; 

(iii) Recommend to the Board of Directors the approval of the audited annual financial 
statements of the Corporation;  

(iv) Review reports on any litigation, claim or other contingency that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements of the Corporation; 

(v) Review any public disclosures containing audited or unaudited financial 
information of the Corporation; and 

(vi) Review with the external auditor and the Board of Directors any material issues 
that arise with respect to the quality or integrity of the financial statements of the 
Corporation and its compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements related 
thereto. 

Page 32 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670615v3   

 

 - 5 -  

 

(c) Internal Controls 

The Committee will periodically review, with assistance from the external auditor or internal 
auditor of the Corporation if requested by the Committee, the adequacy of financial internal 
controls and provide reports or recommendations to the Board of Directors on such adequacy.   

(d) External Auditor 

The Committee will:  

(i) Recommend external auditor for appointment by the Board of Directors, including 
their compensation; such external auditor will report directly to the Committee and 
be independent of the Corporation; 

(ii) Review the performance of the external auditor at least annually and meet with the 
external auditor on such basis as the Committee may determine; 

(iii) If appropriate, recommend the removal and replacement of the external auditor; 

(iv) Pre-approve all services (audit and non-audit) to be provided to the Corporation by 
the external auditor; and 

(v) Review and approve the scope of the external audit plans at least annually. 

(e) Internal Auditor 

The Committee may: 

(i) Approve the appointment of internal auditor, including their compensation; if so 
appointed, such internal auditor will report directly to the Committee and be 
independent of the Corporation; 

(ii) Review and approve the scope of the internal audit plan and ensure the 
coordination of the internal auditor with the external auditor; 

(iii) Review reports issued by internal auditor and management's response to the 
reports, meet with the internal auditor as the Committee may determine, and 
monitor actions taken in respect of the reports; and 

(iv) Review the performance of the internal auditor at least annually. 

(f) Government Audits 

The Committee will: 

(i) Review the reports issued by a government auditor or government appointed 
auditor ( “government auditors”) and management's response to the reports, and 
monitor actions taken in respect of the reports; 

(ii) Meet, if necessary, with government auditors after the completion of their audit, or 
have the Chair of the Committee do so, and provide a report on such report and 
meeting to the Committee; and 

Page 33 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670615v3   

 

 - 6 -  

 

(iii) Ensure the coordination of government auditors' involvement with the work of the 
external and internal auditor of the Corporation. 

(g) Finance 

The Committee will regularly review significant matters involving the financial status of the 
Corporation and make recommendations to the Board of Directors with respect to material 
financial matters affecting the Corporation, such as: 

(i) The financial aspects of annual and longer-term budgets, and any significant 
variances therein; 

(ii) The annual corporate plan and five-year strategic plan, periodic forecasts, long-
term financial plans and revisions thereto, and key performance indicators adopted 
by, or applicable to, the Corporation; 

(iii) The adequacy of financial resources and cash flow of the Corporation; and 

(iv) Review reports from management on various financial measures and reports 
requested by the Board of Directors. 

(h) Enterprise Risk Management 

The Committee will: 

(i) Provide oversight of the enterprise risk management program of the Corporation, 
which shall include cybersecurity risk management, including overseeing the 
identification, measurement, monitoring and controlling of enterprise risks and 
attempting to ensure that implementation and function of appropriate risk 
management systems are consistent with the determined risk appetite of the 
Corporation; and 

(ii) Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, review and consider annually the 
insurance coverage to be procured and maintained and recommend for approval 
by the Board insurance policies to appropriately and effectively protect the 
interests of the Corporation and its Directors. 

(i) Project Risk Management 

The Committee will receive reporting from the Chief Project Officer and review and make 
recommendations to the Board of Directors, in accordance with the policies and procedures 
approved by the Board of Directors in respect of: 

(i) projects (including capital projects) of the Corporation and whether the Committee 
should monitor the projects; and 

(ii) requests to approve the budget, scope, or schedule of projects (including capital 
projects) and material changes to the same. 

The Committee will consider the following criteria when determining whether it should monitor any 
projects: 

Page 34 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670615v3   

 

 - 7 -  

 

(iii) a budget in excess of $50 million; 

(iv) high complexity and potential for numerous unknown risks; 

(v) compressed timeline or work schedule; 

(vi) self-insurance; 

(vii) multiple stakeholders; and 

(viii) high public profile or visibility. 

(j) Fundraising 

The Committee will: 

(i) Review and make recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding 
fundraising (including strategy) of the Corporation, in accordance with the policies 
and procedures approved by the Board of Directors. Fundraising by the 
Corporation may include donations, sponsorship, and government grants; and   

(ii) Monitor the implementation by the Corporation of the approved fundraising 
strategies, including in respect of project status, expenditures, deliverables, and 
risks. 

(k) Procurement 

The Committee will receive for information (i)  any amendments to the Procurement Policy of the 
Corporation made from time to time and (ii) all reports from the Internal Auditor of the Corporation 
and all Government Audits, relating to the procurement practices and procedures of the 
Corporation.  

(l) Other Duties and Obligations 

The Committee will undertake such other duties and obligations, and have such other powers, as 
may be assigned to it by the Board of Directors from time to time.  

Responsibilities of the Chair of the Committee 

The Chair of the Committee is responsible for the management and effective performance of the 
Committee and to provide leadership to the Committee in fulfilling this Mandate. The 
responsibilities of the Chair of the Committee include: 

(i) Working with the Chair of the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer and 
the Corporate Secretary to establish the frequency of Meetings and the agendas 
for Meetings; 

(ii) Providing leadership to the Committee and presiding over Meetings; 

(iii) Facilitating the flow of information to and from the Committee and fostering an 
environment in which the Members may ask questions and express their views; 

Page 35 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670615v3   

 

 - 8 -  

 

(iv) Reporting to the Board of Directors with respect to significant activities of the 
Committee and recommendations made by the Committee; and 

(v) Leadership in taking such other steps as may be reasonably required to ensure 
that the Committee carries out this Mandate. 

 

Page 36 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670620v3   

  Draft March 11, 2021 

 

 
  

MANDATE OF INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE COMMITTEE 

OF 

TORONTO WATERFRONT REVITALIZATION CORPORATION 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670620v3   

 

- 2 - 

 

 
 

TORONTO WATERFRONT REVITALIZATION CORPORATION 

Mandate of Investment and Real Estate Committee 
 
Effective Date: [●], 2021 
  
 
Purpose 

The Investment and Real Estate Committee (the "Committee") is a committee of the board of 
directors (the "Board of Directors") of the Toronto Waterfront Revitalization Corporation (the 
"Corporation"). The primary function of the Committee is to assist the Corporation in fulfilling its 
oversight responsibilities by evaluating and making recommendations to the Board of Directors in 
respect of: 

(i) Real estate acquisitions and divestitures; 

(ii) Major development projects; and 

(iii) Any matters which the Board of Directors may determine from time to time. 

Authority of the Committee 

1. The Board of Directors authorizes the Committee to: 

(a) Perform its responsibilities under this Mandate; 

(b) Provide strategic review and advice in respect of the matters described in this 
Mandate;  

(c) Oversee the Corporation's risk management policies relevant to this Mandate and 
ensure that those policies are implemented appropriately; 

(d) Require the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation (the "Chief Executive 
Officer")and other senior officers of the Corporation, and invite any others it deems 
to have relevant experience and expertise, to attend or participate in any meeting 
of the Committee (each, a "Meeting") from time to time;  

(e) Communicate expectations and the nature, timing and extent of the Committee's 
informational needs to management of the Corporation; and 

(f) Oversee any real estate-related tasks assigned to the Committee by the Board of 
Directors. 

Page 38 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670620v3   

 

- 3 - 

 

2. The Committee may access all records and information of the Corporation that it considers 
necessary or desirable for the performance of its duties. The Committee may gather 
information relevant to any matter within its scope of responsibility and retain, at the 
expense of the Corporation, independent advisors to assist the Committee in performing 
its duties. Each member of the Committee shall be entitled, to the fullest extent permitted 
by law, to rely on the accuracy of information provided by persons from within or from 
outside the Corporation provided that the member acts in good faith and exercises their 
judgement reasonably in the circumstances. 

Composition and Procedures of the Committee 

3. The Committee will be appointed by the Board of Directors and will be composed of no 
fewer than three Directors (each, a "Member"). The Committee will be chaired by a 
member of the Board of Directors (each, a "Director") appointed by the Board of Directors 
(the "Chair of the Committee"). The Corporate Secretary of the Corporation (the 
"Corporate Secretary") will be the secretary of the Committee and may appoint a 
nominee to act as recording secretary for a Meeting. 

4. Each Member will serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors and will cease to be a 
Member (i) when determined by the Board of Directors, (ii) upon removal by the Board of 
Directors, (iii) upon termination of the Member's tenure as a Director for any reason 
whatsoever, or (iv) as required the by-laws or policies of the Corporation or by law. 

5. The Board of Directors may fill vacancies in the Committee from time to time, and for the 
period of time that a vacancy exists the remaining Members may exercise all powers of 
the Committee, provided that a quorum of Members is in attendance at a Meeting at which 
those powers are exercised.  

Meetings of the Committee 

6. The Chair of the Committee, the Corporate Secretary or any two Members may call 
Meetings  

7. Notice of a Meeting, including the date, time, and place of the Meeting, must be provided 
to each Member at least two days before the date of the Meeting, unless any of these 
requirements is waived by all Members. The agenda of the Meeting and supporting 
materials (if any) must be given to each Member prior to the Meeting to allow each Member 
to properly review and consider the agenda and materials. 

8. The Chair of the Committee, in consultation with the Members, and, as he or she considers 
appropriate, with any of the other Directors, the Chief Executive Officer,  the Chief 
Development Officer, the Corporate Secretary and other senior officers, is responsible for 
establishing the agenda of each Meeting. 

9. The powers and authority of the Committee may be exercised at a Meeting only if a 
quorum is present. 

10. A quorum for a Meeting is two Members. 

11. Members may attend any Meeting in person or by telephone, video or other digital means.   

Page 39 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670620v3   

 

- 4 - 

 

12. A Director, who is not a Member, may attend, but not vote at, a Meeting. The Chief 
Executive Officer, and the Chief Development Officer will be invited to all Meetings (other 
than closed Meetings), but may not vote at Meetings. 

13. If the Chair of the Committee is unable to attend a Meeting, the other Members in the 
attendance at the Meeting may appoint a Member to chair the Meeting.    

14. The Chair of the Committee or the substitute chair (as applicable) may vote on any matter 
at a Meeting, but will not have a second or casting vote. 

15. The Corporate Secretary or his or her nominee (if applicable) will prepare and maintain 
minutes of each Meeting. Minutes will be available to each Member and to any other 
Director upon request. 

Duties and Responsibilities of the Committee 

The Committee will evaluate and make recommendations to the Board of Directors with respect 
to, or approve as indicated, the following matters: 

(a) General Responsibilities 

The Committee will: 

(i) Create and maintain a Committee work plan for the year, and monitor its 
performance; 

(ii) Review and assess this Mandate at least annually, and refer its assessment and 
any proposed revisions to the Human Resources, Governance, and Stakeholder 
Relations Committee; 

(iii) Report and make recommendations periodically to the Board of Directors and any 
other applicable Committee of the Board on the matters covered by this Mandate, 
including without limitation, matters relating to Environmental, Social and 
Governance considerations; and 

(iv) Perform any other activities consistent with this Mandate, the by-laws of the 
Corporation, and applicable law, as the Committee or the Board of Directors 
deems necessary or appropriate. 

(b) Major Development Projects 

The Committee will: 

(i) Review and evaluate for recommendation to the Board of Directors development 
projects to be undertaken by the Corporation where the proceeds to, or 
expenditures by, the Corporation are reasonably expected to be equal to or greater 
than $5,000,000 ("Major Development Projects"); 

(ii) Recommend for approval by the Board of Directors the developers to be engaged 
by the Corporation to assist with the implementation of Major Development 
Projects, and the key terms and conditions of those engagements; and 

Page 40 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670620v3   

 

- 5 - 

 

(iii) Oversee the implementation and execution of all Major Development Projects 
approved by the Board of Directors if, to the extent, and in the manner, the 
Committee considers appropriate. 

(c) Real Estate  

The Committee will: 

(i) Review and evaluate for recommendation to the Board of Directors: 

1. Real estate acquisitions and divestitures proposed by management; and 

2. Real property leases where the proposed expenditures, or receipts, by the 
Corporation over the life of the lease are reasonably expected to exceed 
$2,000,000; and 

(ii) Oversee the implementation and execution of all real estate transactions approved 
by the Board of Directors. 

(d) Governance Framework and Protocols  

The Committee will provide strategic review and recommendations to the Board of Directors on 
appropriate governance frameworks and protocols for overseeing Major Development Projects 
and real estate acquisitions, divestitures, and leasing (together, the "Governance Framework 
and Protocols"). Without limitation, the Governance Framework and Protocols will address: 

(i) Communication with governments and other stakeholders; 

(ii) Reporting to the Board of Directors; 

(iii) Seeking approval by the Board of Directors as required under this Mandate or the 
by-laws or policies of the Corporation; and 

(iv) Processes for selecting and engaging developers to assist with Major 
Development Projects or as the Committee may otherwise determine in its 
discretion. 

(e) Other Duties and Obligations 

The Committee will undertake such other duties and obligations, and have such other powers, as 
may be assigned to it by the Board of Directors from time to time.  

Responsibilities of the Chair of the Committee 

The Chair of the Committee is responsible for the management and effective performance of the 
Committee and to provide leadership to the Committee in fulfilling this Mandate. The 
responsibilities of the Chair of the Committee include: 

 
(i) Working with the Chair of the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the 

Chief Development Officer and the Corporate Secretary to establish the frequency 
of Meetings and the agendas for Meetings; 

Page 41 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670620v3   

 

- 6 - 

 

(ii) Providing leadership to the Committee and presiding over Meetings; 

(iii) Facilitating the flow of information to and from the Committee and fostering an 
environment in which the Members may ask questions and express their views; 

(iv) Reporting to the Board of Directors with respect to significant activities of the 
Committee and recommendations made by the Committee; and 

(v) Leadership in taking such other steps as may be reasonably required to ensure 
that the Committee carries out this Mandate. 

Page 42 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670618v3   

Draft March 11, 2021 

 

 
  

 
HUMAN RESOURCES, GOVERNANCE AND  

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONS COMMITTEE MANDATE 

OF 

TORONTO WATERFRONT REVITALIZATION CORPORATION 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 43 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670618v3   

 

 

 

TORONTO WATERFRONT REVITALIZATION CORPORATION 

Human Resources, Governance and Stakeholder Relations Committee Mandate 

Effective Date: [●], 2021 
  

Purpose 

The Human Resources, Governance and Stakeholder Relations Committee (the "Committee") is 
a committee of the board of directors (the "Board of Directors") of the Toronto Waterfront 
Revitalization Corporation (the "Corporation"). The primary function of the Committee is to assist 
the Corporation in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities by evaluating and making 
recommendations to the Board of Directors as appropriate with respect to: 

(i) Human resources management;  

(ii) Diversity and inclusion initiatives; 

(iii) Corporate governance,  

(iv) Stakeholder Relations; 

(v) Any specific project that the Committee, in its discretion from time to time, 
designates; and 

(vi) Any other matters that, from time to time, the Board of Directors may delegate to 
the Committee for oversight. 

Authority of the Committee 

1. The Board of Directors authorizes the Committee to: 

(a) Perform its responsibilities under this Mandate; 

(b) Provide strategic review and advice in respect of the matters described in this 
Mandate;  

(c) Oversee the Corporation's risk management policies relevant to this Mandate and 
ensure that those such policies are implemented appropriately; 

(d) Require the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation (the "Chief Executive 
Officer"), the Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation (the "Chief Financial 
Officer"), and other senior officers of the Corporation, and invite any others it 
deems to have relevant experience and expertise, to attend, or participate in, any 
meetings of the Committee (each, a "Meeting") from time to time;  

Page 44 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670618v3   

 

- 2 - 
 

(e) Communicate expectations and the nature, timing and extent of the Committee's 
informational needs to management of the Corporation; and 

(f) Oversee any related tasks assigned to the Committee by the Board of Directors. 

2. The Committee may access all records and information of the Corporation that it 
considers necessary or desirable for the performance of its duties. The Committee may 
gather information relevant to any matters within its scope of responsibility and retain, at 
the expense of the Corporation, independent advisors to assist the Committee in 
performing its duties. Each member of the Committee shall be entitled, to the fullest 
extent permitted by law, to rely on the accuracy of information provided by persons from 
within or from outside the Corporation provided that the member acts in good faith and 
exercises their judgement reasonably in the circumstances. 
 

Composition and Procedures of the Committee 

3. The Committee will be appointed by the Board of Directors and will be composed of no 
fewer than three Directors (each, a "Member"). The Committee will be chaired by a 
member of the Board of Directors (each, a "Director") appointed by the Board of Directors 
(the "Chair of the Committee"). The Corporate Secretary of the Corporation (the 
"Corporate Secretary") will be the secretary of the Committee and may appoint a 
nominee to act as recording secretary for a Meeting. 

4. Each Member will serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors and will cease to be a 
Member (i) when determined by the Board of Directors, (ii) upon removal by the Board of 
Directors, (iii) upon termination of the Member's tenure as a Director for any reason 
whatsoever, or (iv) as required the by-laws or policies of the Corporation or by law. 

5. The Board of Directors may fill vacancies in the Committee from time to time, and for the 
period of time that a vacancy exists the remaining Members may exercise all powers of 
the Committee, provided that a quorum of Members is in attendance at a Meeting at which 
those powers are exercised.  

Meetings of the Committee 

6. The Chair of the Committee, the Corporate Secretary or any two Members may call 
Meetings.  

7. Notice of a Meeting, including the date, time, and place of the Meeting, must be provided 
to each Member at least two days before the date of the Meeting, unless any of these 
requirements is waived by all Members. The agenda of the Meeting and supporting 
materials (if any) must be given to each Member prior to the Meeting to allow each Member 
to properly review and consider the agenda and materials. 

8. The Chair of the Committee, in consultation with the Members, and, as he or she considers 
appropriate, with any of the other Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the Corporate 
Secretary and other senior officers, is responsible for establishing the agenda of each 
Meeting. 

9. The powers and authority of the Committee may be exercised at a Meeting only if a 
quorum is present. 

Page 45 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670618v3   

 

- 3 - 
 

10. A quorum for a Meeting is two Members. 

11. Members may attend any Meeting in person or by telephone, video or other digital means.   

12. A Director, who is not a Member, may attend, but not vote at, a Meeting. The Chief 
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer will be invited to all Meetings (other than 
closed Meetings) but may not vote at Meetings. 

13. If the Chair of the Committee is unable to attend a Meeting, the other Members in the 
attendance at the Meeting may appoint a Member to chair the Meeting.    

14. The Chair of the Committee or the substitute chair (as applicable) may vote on any matter 
at a Meeting but will not have a second or casting vote. 

15. The Corporate Secretary or his or her nominee (if applicable) will prepare and maintain 
minutes of each Meeting. Minutes will be available to each Member and to any other 
Director upon request. 

Duties and Responsibilities of the Committee 

The Committee will evaluate and make recommendations to the Board of Directors with respect 
to, or approve as indicated, the following matters: 

(a) General Responsibilities 

The Committee will: 

(i) Create and maintain a Committee work plan for the year, and monitor its 
performance; 

(ii) Review and assess this Mandate at least annually, and refer its assessment and 
any proposed revisions to the Board of Directors; 

(iii) Report and make recommendations periodically to the Board of Directors and any 
other applicable Committee of the Board on the matters covered by this Mandate, 
including without limitation, matters relating to Environmental, Social and 
Governance considerations; and 

(iv) Perform any other activities consistent with this Mandate, the by-laws of the 
Corporation, and applicable law, as the Committee or the Board of Directors 
deems necessary or appropriate. 

(b) Human Resources Management 

It is the goal of the Corporation to create and maintain (i) an equitable, diverse, inclusive, and 
progressive culture and environment and (ii) the human resources systems necessary or 
desirable to attract and retain the personnel needed to achieve the Corporation's objectives. In 
furtherance of this, the Committee will: 

(i) Assist the Board of Directors in performing an annual evaluation of the 
performance of the Chief Executive Officer; 

Page 46 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670618v3   

 

- 4 - 
 

(ii) Annually review the Chief Executive Officer's recommendations for salary 
adjustments, variable compensation and performance ratings for each position of 
the Senior Executive Group; 

(iii) Review the compensation structure and corporate objectives for the Senior 
Executive Group, including a review of compensation for similar roles in 
comparable organizations; 

(iv) Review the compensation structure and objectives applicable to the non-executive 
employees as required, and annually receive a report from the Chief Executive 
Officer or his or her nominee, confirming that compensation to the non-executive 
employees is consistent with that structure and those objectives; 

(v) Review the practices of the Corporation in human resources management in areas 
such as compensation, recruitment, training, employee relations, succession 
planning, talent management, performance management, benefits administration, 
and other programs designed to meet the Corporation's objectives; 

(vi) Review the human resources policies of the Corporation, including recruitment, 
compensation, performance management, job evaluation, pay equity, employment 
equity, learning and development, health and safety, codes of conduct, travel and 
expenses, benefits and other policies. Such review will include confirming that the 
policies are in compliance with applicable legislation and are effective; 

(vii) Review the recommendations of the Chief Executive Officer regarding the 
recruitment, appointment and termination of the Chief Planning and Design Officer, 
the Chief Project Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, and the Chief Development 
Officer (collectively, the "Senior Executive Group");  

(viii) Review the succession and talent management programs of the Corporation with 
a focus on the positions of the Senior Executive Group; and 

(ix) Review any compensation disclosure before it is publicly disclosed by the 
Corporation. 

(c) Governance and Board Effectiveness 

The Committee will: 

(i) Oversee the development, implementation, and monitoring of current and evolving 
governance standards and best practices; 

(ii) Review annually By-law No. 1, By-law No. 2, By-law No. 3, the Mandate of the 
Board of Directors, the Mandate of the Chair of the Board, the Mandate of the 
Corporate Secretary, the Mandate of the Chief Executive Officer, the Code of 
Conduct applicable to the Board of Directors, the Code of Conduct applicable to 
the employees of the Corporation, the Wrongdoing Policy, all committee 
mandates, and agreements between the Corporation and Directors including any 
indemnification and confidentiality agreements, and report annually on the same 
and any resultant recommendations to the Board of Directors; and 

Page 47 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670618v3   

 

- 5 - 
 

(iii) Oversee the development and implementation of effective policies and practices 
in accordance with required public access to meetings of the Board of Directors 
and of all Committees, consistent with applicable legislation. 

(d) Performance of the Board of Directors, Directors, Committees, and Committee 
members 

The Committee will: 

(i) Oversee a process to annually review the effectiveness of the Board of Directors, 
each Director, each committee of the Board of Directors, and each member of each 
committee, and report the results of the review and any resultant recommendations 
to the Board of Directors; 

(ii) Review and make recommendations to the Board of Director with respect to the 
remuneration of each Director and of members of committees; and 

(iii) Ensure that there is a process in place for the orientation and onboarding of new 
Directors, and that a Board of Directors manual is kept current and made available 
to each Director. 

(e) Diversity and Inclusion 

The Committee will: 

(i) Oversee the development, maintenance monitoring and refinement of strategies, 
policies and practices of the Corporation that facilitate an inclusive, equitable and 
supportive work environment. This includes policies related to recruitment, hiring, 
training, retention and promotion; and 

(ii) Report to the Board of Directors at least annually on the effectiveness of the 
diversity strategy and performance measures on diversity and inclusion. 

(f) Stakeholder Relations 

The Committee will: 

(i) Annually review and evaluate for recommendation to the Board of Directors 
stakeholder performance relationship indicators for the Corporation; and 

(ii) Oversee the implementation and execution of an annual stakeholder relationship 
plan to maintain high levels of positive sentiment toward the Corporation and its 
projects.  

(g) Other Duties and Obligations 

The Committee will undertake such other duties and obligations, and have such other powers, as 
may be assigned to it from time to time by the Board of Directors. 

Page 48 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670618v3   

 

- 6 - 
 

Responsibilities of the Chair of the Committee 

The Chair of the Committee is responsible for the management and effective performance of the 
Committee and to provide leadership to the Committee in fulfilling this Mandate. The 
responsibilities of the Chair of the Committee include: 

 
(i) Working with the Chair of the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer and 

the Corporate Secretary to establish the frequency of Meetings and the agendas 
for Meetings; 

(ii) Providing leadership to the Committee and presiding over Meetings; 

(iii) Facilitating the flow of information to and from the Committee and fostering an 
environment in which the Members may ask questions and express their views; 

(iv) Reporting to the Board of Directors with respect to significant activities of the 
Committee and recommendations made by the Committee; and 

(v) Leadership in taking such other steps as may be reasonably required to ensure 
that the Committee carries out this Mandate. 

Page 49 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670613v3   

Draft February 24, 2021 

 

  

CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT  

OF 

TORONTO WATERFRONT REVITALIZATION CORPORATION 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 50 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670613v3   

 

 

Toronto Waterfront Revitalization Corporation 
20 Bay St., Suite 1310 
Toronto, Ontario, M5J 2N8 

Attention:  Chair of the Board of Directors  
 
Dear_______________________:  

Re: Confidentiality Agreement (the "Agreement") 

In consideration of the sensitive nature of the information that may be disclosed to me in my role 
as a member of the Board of Directors (the "Board of Directors") of Toronto Waterfront 
Revitalization Corporation (the "Corporation"), including during meetings of the Board of 
Directors and any Committee of the Board of Directors ("Committee"), I agree as follows: 

1. "Confidential Information" in this Agreement means all information in any form, whether 
written, oral or electronic that is not, at the time of disclosure to me, generally available to 
the public, including information received from external or internal sources with the 
expectation that it would be kept confidential and that is (a) provided in the context of a 
meeting of the Board of Directors or a Committee, (b) furnished or provided to me by the 
Corporation or any of their agents, advisors or representatives, or (c) acquired by me, now 
and in the future, pertaining to, or provided to me in my role as a member of the Board of 
Directors (a "Director").   

2. Confidential Information disclosed to me will be maintained by me in strict confidence and, 
save and except as otherwise provided herein, it will not be disclosed by me to others 
without the prior written consent of the Chair of the Board of Directors.   

3. I will not disclose, other than as permitted herein, that Confidential Information has been 
made available to me or that I have inspected any portion of Confidential Information. 

4. I will not use or allow the use of any portion of the Confidential Information for any purpose 
other than for use at a meeting of the Board of Directors or Committee in which it is to be 
discussed or in connection with fulfilling my role as a Director, or as otherwise may be 
expressly permitted, and only in compliance with the provisions of this Agreement. 

5. I will not unnecessarily make copies of, or otherwise reproduce, any of the Confidential 
Information. 

6. I will take promptly all reasonable steps to minimize the risk of disclosure of the 
Confidential Information by me to unauthorized persons by ensuring that proper and 
secure storage is provided by me for the Confidential Information and all summaries, 
excerpts and memoranda related thereto. 

7. Should I be required by law or be requested by legal process or regulatory authority to 
disclose any Confidential Information, I will provide the Corporation with prompt written 
notice of the requirement or request so that the Corporation may seek an appropriate 
protection order or pursue any other action, remedy or assurance necessary to preserve 
the confidentiality of the Confidential Information, or waive compliance with any of the 
provisions of this Agreement, or both.  If, in the absence of either a protective order or a 
waiver by the Corporation, I am required by law to disclose Confidential Information or be 
liable for contempt or to suffer other censure or penalty on any failure to so disclose, I 

Page 51 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670613v3   

 

  

 

may, without liability hereunder, disclose that portion, and only that portion, of the 
Confidential Information that is required to be disclosed.  

8. My agreement does not extend to any Confidential Information that: 

(a) enters the into the public domain other than by reason of any breach by me of this 
Agreement; or 

(b) has been lawfully disclosed to me by a third party who (i) did not impose on me any 
restriction on its disclosure, (ii) lawfully came by the information, and (iii) is 
authorized under law to disclose the information to me without any restriction on its 
disclosure. 

9. I acknowledge and agree that the Corporation may be irreparably damaged if any 
provision of this Agreement is not performed by me in accordance with its terms.  
Accordingly, the Corporation will be entitled to an immediate remedy of a restraining order, 
interim injunction, injunction or other form of injunctive or other relief as may be decreed or 
issued by a court to prevent breaches of this Agreement and to enforce specifically its 
terms and provisions in any action instituted against me in any court having jurisdiction.  
These specific remedies are in addition to any other remedy to which the Corporation may 
be entitled at law or in equity. 

10. I will, at your written request, promptly return to the Corporation all of the Confidential 
Information in my possession or control or otherwise provided to me or as requested 
delete or destroy the Confidential Information and certify its deletion or destruction. 
 

11. The provisions of this Agreement will survive indefinitely in full force and effect.  
 

12. "Including" in this Agreement means "including, without limitation". 
 
I hereby execute and deliver this Agreement to the Corporation effective as of this ______ day 
of ________________ 202__. 
 
Yours truly, 

 

________________________ 
Signature: 
 

      
Print name: 
 

Page 52 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670614v3   

Draft February 24, 2021 

 

 
  

 
CODE OF CONDUCT FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF 
 

TORONTO WATERFRONT REVITALIZATION CORPORATION 
  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 53 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670614v3   

 

 

 

 

 

 
TORONTO WATERFRONT REVITALIZATION CORPORATION 

Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors 

Effective Date: [●], 2021 
  

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Who we are 

The Government of Canada, the Province of Ontario, and the City of Toronto created the Toronto 
Waterfront Revitalization Corporation (the "Corporation") to revitalize Toronto's waterfront. The 
key drivers of the waterfront revitalization are reconnecting people with the waterfront, design 
excellence, sustainable development and to create new economic growth, new jobs, fiscal 
sustainability, diverse and dynamic new commercial, residential and recreational communities, 
new cultural institutions and new parks and green spaces for the public. 

The Corporation is governed by the Toronto Waterfront Revitalization Corporation Act 2002 (the 
"Act").  The Corporation is a corporation funded by three levels of government. These government 
bodies have provided seed capital for a 25-year mandate to transform 800 hectares (2,000 acres) 
of brownfield lands on Toronto's waterfront into beautiful, accessible, sustainable, mixed-use 
communities and dynamic public spaces. A strong, expert, and engaged Board of Directors, 
appointed by the three levels of government, oversees the strategic direction of the Corporation. 

1.2 What is a Code of Conduct? 

This Code of Conduct (this "Code") is intended to guide Directors as they perform their role as 
Directors.  

This Code is a set of principles, guidelines, and rules that Directors must use to guide their 
conduct and decision making. This Code establishes responsibilities for Directors to fulfill and 
processes to help Directors fulfill their responsibilities.  

This Code is based on the principles, values, and ethical standards to which the Corporation and 
Directors are held. 

1.3 Application of this Code 

This Code applies to every Director at all times. Each Director is responsible for behaving in 
accordance with this Code, even when the Director is not performing official duties for the Board 
of Directors. Each Director must comply with this Code whether in a boardroom at the Corporation, 
at work, at leisure, through use of Social Media or at their personal residences. This responsibility 
begins when the Director is appointed to the Board of Directors and, in the cases described in 

Page 54 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670614v3   

 

 - 2 -  

 

Sections 2.2,  2.3, 3, 4 and 5, continues even after the Director retires from the Board of Directors 
or otherwise ceases to be a Director. 

This Code relates to the Director's Family Members and to Business Associates in the cases 
described in Sections 2.2 to 2.5, and 2.7. 

1.4 Definitions 

Certain capitalized terms are defined in Section 8. 

1.5 Guiding Principles 

The public mandate of the Corporation requires accountability to the public, the preservation of 
trust and confidence of the public, and that the Corporation acts with efficiency, accountability, 
economy, fairness, impartiality, and integrity.  

In addition to the standards established by this Code, each Director must fulfill the standards of 
conduct, if any, established by the level of government that appointed the Director to the Board 
of Directors. This Code supplements, and does not conflict with, the applicable level of 
government standards of conduct and any terms of appointment. 

The specific rules set out in this Code are illustrative and not exhaustive. Directors must 
strive to comply with the spirit as well as the letter of this Code and must exercise 
judgement in applying the principles embodied in this Code to any particular situation.  If 
a Director is unsure of how to comply with this policy, the Director should seek guidance 
from the Chair of the Board or the General Counsel of the Corporation. 

1.6 Ethical Decision Making 

Directors should consider the following questions as a guide to everyday conduct and decision-
making as a Director: 

(a) Is the decision or conduct legal? Is it ethical?  

(b) Is the decision or conduct in line with the Corporation's public mandate, objectives, 
and policies? 

(c) Is the decision or conduct consistent with the goal of the Corporation to be open, 
inclusive and accepting, and free from any forms of discrimination, aggression, or 
other inappropriate or harmful conduct? 

(d) Is there a Conflict of Interest that should be disclosed? If a Director is uncertain 
whether a Conflict of Interest exists, the Director should report it pursuant to 
Section 2.9 below. 

1.7 Honesty and Integrity 

The fundamental relationship between the Directors and the Corporation must be one of trust. 
The Corporation expects Directors to observe the highest business and ethical standards, 
including honesty and integrity, freedom from discrimination, harassment, or other harmful 

Page 55 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670614v3   

 

 - 3 -  

 

conduct and refraining from engaging in conduct which embarrasses the Corporation or makes 
the Corporation subject to ridicule. 

1.8 Duty to Act in the Best Interests of the Corporation and Duty to Disclose Important 
Information 

Directors must always make decisions honestly and in good faith, act in the best interests of the 
Corporation and in accordance with their fiduciary obligations, and exercise the care, diligence 
and skill that a reasonably prudent person would exercise in comparable circumstances. This duty 
requires that Directors prioritize the interests of the Corporation over the interests of themselves 
and all other persons and other organizations, including the level of government that appointed 
the Director to the Board of Directors. Directors’ obligations to the Corporation include a duty to 
disclose information that comes to their knowledge that could reasonably be considered to impact 
the important interests of the Corporation. The application of these obligations to the facts is often 
complicated.  Directors should feel free to seek guidance, in confidence, from the Chair of the 
Board or the General Counsel of the Corporation. 

1.9 Compliance with Policies of the Corporation  

Directors must comply with the policies of the Corporation that apply to them and of which they 
have been made aware. The Corporation or the Board of Directors may create new policies and 
update existing policies that are applicable to the Directors. Up to date copies of applicable 
policies will be provided to the Board of Directors. 

If a Director is unsure of how to comply with a policy, the Director should seek guidance from the 
Chair of the Board or the General Counsel of the Corporation. 

1.10 Follow the Law  

Directors must always follow the law, including federal, provincial, and municipal law. Directors 
must not instruct or encourage others to commit an illegal or improper act, especially if the act 
involves the Corporation in any way. Directors have a responsibility to familiarize themselves with 
legislation and regulations that apply to their directorship. Directors should seek legal advice 
where appropriate. 

2. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

2.1 What is a Conflict of Interest? 

A Conflict of Interest is a situation where any interest or desire of a Director may compete or 
appear to compete with the best interests of the Corporation. It is any situation that could appear 
to improperly influence the decision making of a Director.  A conflict situation can arise where a 
Director, a Director’s Family Member or Business Associate (a) has a personal interest that might 
interfere or appear to interfere with the Corporation's interests or the Director's duty to the 
Corporation (b) chooses or may appear to have chosen a personal interest over the interests of 
the Corporation, or (c) takes actions or has interests that may make it difficult or appear to make 
it difficult to perform her or her work objectively and effectively. 

Appearances matter in the context of Conflicts of Interest. The appearance or perception of a 
Conflict of Interest is a Conflict of Interest situation, even if the Director does not believe that a 

Page 56 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670614v3   

 

 - 4 -  

 

real Conflict of Interest exists. If a Director is unsure whether a situation may present a Conflict of 
Interest, the Director should consult the Ethics Official.  

The following is an example of a hypothetical Conflict of Interest. Imagine that the Corporation 
puts out a request for proposal (RFP) for the supply of a product. Two suppliers respond to the 
RFP and tender bids. Imagine that both suppliers, their products, and their bids are similar. Except 
that the bid by one supplier is at a more attractive price for the Corporation, and a Family Member 
of a Director owns the supplier that tendered the other bid. Here, the Director would have a 
Conflict of Interest between promoting the best interests of the Corporation, on the one hand, and 
supporting the Family Member-owned supplier, on the other hand. 

There are many types of interests of Directors that may create Conflict of Interest situations, 
including business interests, personal relationships, and others. But all Conflicts of Interest have 
the potential to undermine the performance by the Director of their duty to make decisions and 
act in the best interests of the Corporation, and to embarrass and undermine the Corporation. 

Section 2.2 to 2.8 are examples of Conflict of Interest situations. Directors must report all Conflict 
of Interest situations to the Ethics Official, even if the situations are not specifically addressed in 
or prohibited by these examples or this Code. Directors should use their judgement and the 
principles and guidelines set out in this Code to identify Conflict of Interest situations that are not 
specifically addressed in or prohibited by this Code. 

2.2 Procurement 

Procurement is the process by which the Corporation purchases, licenses, or obtains goods, 
products, services, and anything else. It is essential that all Directors and suppliers who have 
procurement-related Conflicts of Interest report the Conflicts of Interest to the Ethics Official in 
accordance with Section 2.9.   

In addition, the Corporation maintains a standalone Procurement Policy in respect of 
procurement. Directors should read and understand this policy, which is available on the 
Procurement section of the Corporation website. In particular, Directors should not have 
unauthorized contact with any proponent seeking to work with the Corporation in respect of that 
work or be subject to any lobbying efforts in respect of it. 

Where a Director, Family Member or Business Associate has a relationship with or interest in a 
supplier that may be a Conflict of Interest, the supplier may tender bids to the Corporation ONLY 
if: 

(a) the Director reports the Conflict of Interest to the Ethics Official pursuant to Section 
2.9; 

(b) the supplier reports the Conflict of Interest to the Procurement Manager pursuant 
to the Procurement Policy; 

(c) the Director absents themselves from discussions about and voting on behalf of 
the Corporation on matter(s) related to the Conflict of Interest; and 

(d) the Director and Supplier comply with all requirements and conditions as instructed 
by the Ethics Official pursuant to Section 2.11 and/or the Procurement Policy, as 
applicable. 

Page 57 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670614v3   

 

 - 5 -  

 

2.3 Personal Financial Transactions 

Directors must protect the confidentiality of Confidential Information and must not take advantage 
of the fact that they have, or have access to, Confidential Information. For example, Directors 
must not use Confidential Information to achieve a financial advantage for themselves personally, 
a Family Member, a Business Associate, or any other person. Directors may only use Confidential 
Information in the best interests of the Corporation.  

Misuse of Confidential Information may, in some circumstances, also represent a breach of 
securities laws relating to trading or tipping and may expose a Director to serious legal 
consequences. 

2.4 Gifts 

The receipt, directly or indirectly, of Gifts by Directors, Family Members, or Business Associates 
from other parties has risks including the following. It could breach the policy of the Corporation 
that all suppliers of goods or services are to have access to the Corporation on equal terms. It 
could generate a Conflict of Interest situation. To protect against these and other potential risks, 
Directors: 

(a) must not solicit Gifts in connection with their position as Directors or their 
association with the Corporation; 

(b) must not accept or receive Gifts as a condition of or inducement to the Corporation 
doing business with any person, organization, or business; 

(c) must not accept or receive Gifts as an inducement for performing an act associated 
with the position of Director or in exchange for preferential treatment; 

(d) may accept a Gift, hospitality or entertainment in connection with the official duties 
of Directors ONLY if the Gift, hospitality, or entertainment satisfies all of the 
following conditions. The Gift, hospitality, or entertainment must: 

(i) be within the bounds of propriety, normal expression of courtesy, or the 
normal standards of hospitality; 

(ii) have a value not exceeding C$100; 

(iii) not bring suspicion on the objectivity and impartiality of the Directors;  

(iv) not compromise the integrity or reputation of the Corporation, or the 
Directors; 

(v) not generate a Conflict of Interest situation; and 

(vi) not be associated with preferential access of any person, business, or 
organization to the Corporation. 

If a Director, Family Member, or Business Associate receives a Gift that would cause the Director 
to be in breach of any of the above, the Gift must be returned to the donor.  

Page 58 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670614v3   

 

 - 6 -  

 

Directors must not directly or indirectly give, offer or agree to give or offer to anyone, including an 
official or employee of the Government of Canada, the Province of Ontario, or the City of Toronto 
(or knowingly to any Family Member or Business Associate of the official or employee) a Gift as 
consideration for cooperation, assistance, exercise of influence or an act or omission in 
connection with any Corporation business or transaction. 

2.5 Employment of Family Members and Business Associates 

The employment of a Director's Family Members or Business Associates by the Corporation has 
risks including the following. It could be perceived as favoritism in hiring or suggest that job 
applicants do not have equal access to opportunities at the Corporation. It could generate a 
Conflict of Interest situation. To protect against this and other potential risks, Directors: 

(a) must not participate in the selection process where a Family Member or Business 
Associate is an applicant; 

(b) must not request that a Family Member or Business Associate be hired or retained; 

(c) must not request that a current or potential supplier of goods or services to the 
Corporation hire or retain a Family Member or Business Associate, make the 
business of the Corporation with the supplier conditional on the hiring or retainer, 
or use the business of the Corporation to induce the supplier to hire or retain a 
Family Member or Business Associate. 

The Corporation will not hire or retain (including as interns or co-op students; whether paid or 
unpaid) a Family Member or Business Associate of a Director, unless the potential hiring or 
retainer is reported to and approved by the Ethics Official, and carried out in accordance with all 
instructions of the Ethics Official, pursuant to Section 2.11. 

2.6 No Misuse of Status as Director 

Directors must not use their status, title, or position as Directors to obtain a Gift or to solicit funds, 
goods, or services, for themselves personally or for any person, business, or organization, from 
the Corporation staff of from those contracting or otherwise involved with the Corporation. 
However, this provision is not intended to otherwise restrict the solicitation of funds, goods, or 
services from parties in the normal course and in a manner unrelated to and without any influence 
or benefit from the Director's association with the Corporation. 

This means that no Director should use the fact of being a Director as leverage to achieve any 
benefit for themselves or others, other than for the Corporation. 

2.7 Purchasing Condominium Units or Real Estate within the Designated Waterfront 
Area 

Directors and their Family Members must not lease or purchase, or negotiate for the lease or 
purchase of, any interest in or deriving from real estate that is located in or adjacent to the 
Designated Waterfront Area, unless they (i) first report the same to the Ethics Official, and (ii) are 
granted prior written permission to do so by the Ethics Official. 

Page 59 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670614v3   

 

 - 7 -  

 

For certainty, a Conflict of Interest exists if any Director, Family Member or Business Associate 
will benefit from any delivery incentives such as "early bird" pricing, other discounts, or preferential 
positioning on sale prospects lists that are not then generally available to the public.  

Directors are also required to disclose to the Board of Directors the proposed acquisition, holding 
or disposition of any interest in real estate that is within or adjacent to the Designated Waterfront 
Area, by themselves, their Family Members and Business Associates. 

2.8 Use of the Corporation's Assets 

Directors must not use or permit others to use any property or assets of the Corporation, including 
but not limited to Intellectual Property, except for the benefit of the Corporation. Directors must 
not take or permit others to take any property or assets from the premises of the Corporation, 
unless the Corporation has authorized them to do so.  

2.9 Reporting of Conflicts of Interest 

Individuals are often appointed as Directors because they have experience that is relevant to the 
business of the Corporation, and it is often because of their experience that Directors may find 
themselves in a Conflict of Interest situation. 

Directors must declare and report all Conflicts of Interest: 

(a) When they become Directors – Each Director must immediately report all Conflicts 
of Interest to the Ethics Official prior to or at the beginning of their term as Director 
by signing and delivering a Declaration to the Ethics Official. See Section 7.5 for 
more on Declarations; 

(b) At the beginning of every calendar year – Each Director must report all Conflicts 
of Interest to the Ethics Official at the beginning of every calendar year by signing 
and delivering a Declaration to the Ethics Official, whether or not the Conflicts of 
Interest have been reported previously. See Section 7.5 for more on Declarations; 

(c) At the beginning of every Meeting – Each Director must immediately report all 
Conflicts of Interest arising out of the agenda of a Meeting to the Board of Directors 
or Committee members at the beginning of every Meeting as applicable (see 
Section 2.11 for more on reporting Conflicts of Interest at the beginning of 
Meetings); and 

(d) When a change in circumstances may raise a Conflict of Interest – Each Director 
must immediately report to the Ethics Official any change in circumstances that 
may raise a Conflict of Interest as soon as the change occurs. 

2.10 Meeting Procedures 

Each Director or Committee member must report all of their Conflicts of Interest arising out of a 
Meeting agenda as soon as the Conflict of Interest is apparent, and in any case at the beginning 
of every Meeting to the Board of Directors or the Committee, as applicable. 

After reporting the Conflict of Interest to the Board of Directors or Committee, as applicable, unless 
the Ethics Official has granted a Waiver in respect of the Conflict of Interest and subject to any 

Page 60 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670614v3   

 

 - 8 -  

 

conditions the Ethics Official has imposed, the Director or Committee member involved with the 
Conflict of Interest must: 

(a) absent themself from discussions at the Meeting about, and voting on, any matter 
relating to their Conflict of Interest, but may participate in the rest of the Meeting 
and vote on matters that are unrelated to the Conflict of Interest; and 

(b) not be counted for the purposes of determining a quorum for that portion of a 
Meeting involving deliberations and resolutions on the subject matter of the Conflict 
of Interest. 

However, if the subject matter of the Conflict of Interest is the indemnity of the Director, the 
insurance available to the Director or the remuneration of the Director, the Director may participate 
fully in the deliberation and voting, and will be counted for purposes of determining quorum. These 
are specific exceptions to Conflict of Interest rules that are made in the legislation governing the 
Corporation and in its best interests. 

2.11 Resolution of Conflicts of Interest 

The Ethics Official will investigate and resolve all Conflicts of Interest. The Ethics Official may 
resolve Conflicts of Interest by: 

(a) determining that there is no actual Conflict of Interest in accordance Section 7.4; 

(b) instructing Directors involved with the Conflict of Interest to absent themselves 
from discussions about, and voting on behalf of the Corporation on, the matter 
relating to the Conflict of Interest; 

(c) permitting the Director involved with the Conflict of Interest to participate in the 
situation subject to restrictions or conditions that the Ethics Official considers 
appropriate in the circumstances; 

(d) Waiving the Conflict of Interest if appropriate and in accordance with Section 7.4; 
and/or 

(e) taking any action that the Ethics Official determines will promote the public 
mandate and best interests of the Corporation. 

If a Conflict of Interest relates to procurement of the Corporation, also refer to Section 2.2 above. 

2.12 Conflicts Register 

The General Counsel will maintain a written Conflicts Register, that may include: (i) Declarations, 
(ii) information about all reported breaches of this Code, including reports made pursuant to 
Section 2.9, the parties involved, and how the breaches were resolved, including whether Waivers 
were granted and any prohibitions, sanctions, conditions, and restrictions were imposed, and 
(iii) other information as the General Counsel may determine.  

The Ethics Official will disclose information regarding all Conflicts of Interest to the General 
Counsel. The General Counsel will provide a report on the Conflicts Register to the Governance 
Committee at least once in each calendar quarter.  

Page 61 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670614v3   

 

 - 9 -  

 

3. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

Directors must use Confidential Information solely for the purpose of performing their duties as 
Directors of the Corporation and in accordance with, and subject to, the terms and conditions of 
any confidentiality agreement between the Corporation and the Director. 

Directors must not disclose Confidential Information at any time or for any reason, even after 
ceasing to be a Director, unless required by law or authorized to disclose it by an authorized 
representative of the Corporation.  

Directors must take all reasonable steps to safeguard the confidentiality of all Confidential 
Information.  

4. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 

Directors must take all reasonable steps to safeguard the Intellectual Property of the Corporation.  

All materials created by and communications involving Directors in connection with their work for 
the Corporation are the Intellectual Property of the Corporation and owned exclusively by the 
Corporation. 

5. PUBLIC STATEMENTS, THE MEDIA & RECORD KEEPING 

5.1 Who Speaks for the Corporation 

Only the Chief Executive Officer, the Chair of the Board, and their designated representatives are 
authorized to speak on behalf of the Corporation and/or disclose Confidential Information. 

5.2 Who Speaks for the Board of Directors 

Only the Chair of the Board and their designated representatives are authorized to speak on 
behalf of the Board of Directors.  

Directors must not make public comments about the Board of Directors or the Corporation, unless 
the Chair of the Board has authorized the Directors to do so. 

5.3 The Media 

Directors must not communicate with or provide information to the media about the Corporation, 
unless the Chair of the Board has authorized the Directors to do so. 

Similarly, Directors must not communicate with or provide information to the media about the 
Board of Directors or the Corporation, unless the Chair of the Board has authorized the Directors 
to do so. 

5.4 Social Media 

Directors must not communicate about or discuss the Board of Directors or the Corporation on 
Social Media, unless the Chair of the Board has authorized the Directors to do so. 

Page 62 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670614v3   

 

 - 10 -  

 

5.5 Requests for Disclosure 

Directors who receive external requests to disclose Confidential Information or other information 
about the Corporation must immediately provide the requests to the Chair of the Board or General 
Counsel of the Corporation, and must not respond to the requests other than to thank the sender 
and indicate that the request has been forwarded to the Chair of the Board or General Counsel, 
as applicable. 

5.6 Minutes of Meetings and Record Keeping 

Directors and Committee members may take notes during Meetings and may retain the notes 
pending the approval of the official minutes of the Meeting taken by the Secretary of the Meeting, 
at which time Directors must destroy their notes and all copies made. 

Directors must not create or help others to create any false or misleading record of any Meeting 
or of any other matter relating to the Corporation. 

6. ACTIVITIES EXTERNAL TO WATERFRONT TORONTO & POLITICS 

The Corporation welcomes Directors to be involved in their communities and with other activities 
external to the Corporation, including speaking engagements and politics, as Directors may 
choose.  

Except at the request of, or with the authorization of, the Corporation, Directors must not 
participate in external activities on behalf of the Corporation, as representatives of the 
Corporation, or as Directors. When Directors participate in the communities and undertake 
speaking engagements and other activities, they must take steps to clarify that they are doing so 
in their personal capacity and that their participation does not involve, nor is on behalf of, the 
Corporation. 

7. ADMINISTRATION 

7.1 Where to go for help 

Directors are encouraged to seek guidance from the Ethics Official if they are unsure whether 
their conduct breaches this Code.  

7.2 Breach of this Code 

Compliance with this Code is a key requirement of being a Director. A Director is in breach of this 
Code when the conduct of the Director fails to comply with any aspect of this Code. A Director is 
also in breach of this Code if the Director otherwise acts dishonestly or unethically or engages in 
discrimination or harassment or other conduct that embarrasses the Corporation or makes it 
subject to ridicule even if the action taken is not specifically addressed in this Code. 

A breach of this Code could result in a Director being disciplined, dismissed from the Board of 
Directors, subject to legal action, and/or receiving negative publicity. The Corporation may, in 
some instances, be obligated to report a breach of this Code to regulators or law-enforcement 
authorities. 

Page 63 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670614v3   

 

 - 11 -  

 

7.3 Duty to Report Breaches of this Code 

Each Director must report all breaches of this Code to the Ethics Official, including all breaches 
by the Director or by other Directors. 

7.4 Relief or Waiver 

This Code is not intended to be applied mechanically. There may be limited cases where conduct 
breaches this Code but a Waiver of the duty to comply with this Code is appropriate to promote 
the best interests of the Corporation. An example is when a Director has a Conflict of Interest due 
to the Director owning a minor and passive interest in a supplier of the Corporation, and no other 
supplier can serve the interests of the Corporation as well as that one.  

The Ethics Official is responsible for determining whether a potential breach of the Code (a 
“Potential Breach”)  should be Waived and, if so, any conditions that the parties involved and/or 
others must fulfill. 

Continuing with the example above, the Ethics Official may grant a Waiver of the Conflict of 
Interest involving the Director and the supplier. The supplier may then be permitted to supply the 
Corporation, but only if the Director and the supplier comply with the conditions that the Ethics 
Official has imposed. 

The Ethics Official must consider the following factors when determining whether to grant a 
Waiver of a Potential Breach, and, if so, any conditions that must be fulfilled: 

(a) how to promote the best interests of the Corporation; 

(b) how to fulfill the public mandate of the Corporation; 

(c) how to ensure that the Corporation is accountable to the public; 

(d) how to comply with the law and act ethically; 

(e) fairness, both in fact and appearance; 

(f) risk to the reputation of the Corporation; 

(g) the skills, experience, materials, and expertise of the parties involved ; 

(h) the proximity between the Director, Family Member or Business Associate and the 
circumstances that give rise to the Potential Breach; 

(i) whether the involvement of the Director, Family Member or Business Associate 
with the circumstances that raise the Potential Breach is active or passive; 

(j) the likelihood that the Potential Breach may result in the existence or exercise of 
improper influence;  

(k) the monetary or other value associated with the Potential Breach; 

(l) whether procedural mechanisms may resolve the Potential Breach ; and 

Page 64 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670614v3   

 

 - 12 -  

 

(m) any other matter which the Ethics Official may consider appropriate in the 
circumstances. 

There may also be cases where a Director discloses what looks to them to be a Potential Breach, 
but which the Ethics Official determines to not actually be a breach. In these cases, there is no 
breach to Waive, and no further action will be required.  

7.5 Declaration of Compliance with Code 

At the beginning of the term of the Directorship of each Director and at the beginning of every 
subsequent year, each Director must acknowledge and declare that they have read and 
understand this Code, and will fully comply with this Code at all times, by completing, signing and 
delivering the Declaration to the Ethics Official. The current form of the Declaration is attached as 
Appendix A to this Code. 

Please also refer to Section 2.9 for rules on the ongoing reporting of Conflicts of Interest. 

8. DEFINITIONS 

For the purposes of this Code: 

(a) "Business Associate" means, in respect of a Director, (i) any business partner of 
the Director or the Family Member, and/or (ii) any business, organization, or entity 
that the Director, the Family Member, or a business partner of the Director or the 
Family Member works for, with, owns, or has an interest in. 

(b) "Board of Directors" is the board of directors of the Corporation. 

(c) "Chair of the Board" is the person who is the chair of the Board of Directors. 

(d) "Chief Executive Officer" means the President and Chief Executive Officer of the 
Corporation, being the senior employee responsible for the management and 
operation of the Corporation. 

(e) "Confidential Information" is information about or related to the Corporation that 
is not available to the general public and includes information provided by an 
external source with the expectation that the information will be kept confidential 
and will be used solely for the purpose for which it was conveyed. It also includes 
materials that contain or are derived from other Confidential Information.  

(f) "Committee" means any committee, sub-committee, or special purpose 
committee of the Board of Directors. 

(g) "Conflict of Interest" means a situation where any interest or matter competes 
with, could compete with, or appears or could be perceived to compete with, the 
duty of Directors to always act in and promote the best interests of the Corporation. 
"Conflict of Interest" is further defined in Section 2.  

(h) "Corporation" means the Toronto Waterfront Revitalization Corporation, and all 
successors-at-law. 

Page 65 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670614v3   

 

 - 13 -  

 

(i) "Designated Waterfront Area" is the area defined by regulations made under the 
Toronto Waterfront Revitalization Act in which the Corporation has authority to act. 

(j) "Director" is a member of the Board of Directors. 

(k) "Ethics Official" means the Chair of the Board, or if the Chair of the Board may 
have a Conflict of Interest or wishes to delegate the matter, the Governance 
Committee. 

(l) "Family Member" means: 

(i) spouse, any person to whom the person is married or with whom the person 
is living in a conjugal relationship outside marriage; 

(ii) parent, including step-parent and legal guardian; 

(iii) child, including step-child; 

(iv) sibling and children of siblings; 

(v) parents' sibling (aunts/uncles) and their children (cousins); 

(vi) grandchildren; 

(vii) father/mother-in-law, brother/sister-in-law, son/daughter-in-law; or 

(viii) any person who lives with the person on a permanent basis. 

(m) "Gift" means any kind of gift, hospitality, entertainment, benefit, reward, favour, 
influence, or advantage not available to the general public, including but not limited 
to cash, preferred pricing, loans, securities, commissions, or incentives. 

(n) "Governance Committee" means the Committee of the Board, however named, 
that is responsible for reviewing the corporate governance of the Corporation and 
the Board (currently the Human Resources, Governance and Stakeholder 
Relations Committee). 

(o) "Intellectual Property" means all forms of intellectual property, including 
copyright, trademarks, patents, trade secrets, and otherwise, no matter what 
format the intellectual property is in and whether the intellectual property is 
registered or unregistered. 

(p) "Meeting" means any regular, special or other meeting of the Board of Directors 
or of a Committee, where, 

(i) a quorum of members is present; and 

(ii) members discuss or otherwise deal with any matter in a way that materially 
advances the business or decision-making of the Board of Directors or 
Committee. 

Page 66 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670614v3   

 

 - 14 -  

 

(q) "Secretary" means the Secretary of a meeting of the Board of Directors, a 
Committee, or of any other meeting. 

(r) "Social Media" means online tools, platforms, websites, and apps that allow 
people to create and share information online and/or in social networks. This 
information may be in formats including text, audio, video, images, podcasts, and 
otherwise.  

(s) "Waiver" means when the Ethics Official waives conduct or a situation that would 
otherwise be in breach of this Code, in order to promote the best interests of the 
Corporation.  

  

Page 67 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670614v3   

 

 - 15 -  

 

APPENDIX A 

TORONTO WATERFRONT REVITALIZATION CORPORATION 

DECLARATION 

To ensure that Toronto Waterfront Revitalization Corporation (the "Corporation") maintains its 
accountability and integrity, avoids potential embarrassment and reduces any legal exposure 
resulting from conflict of interest situations arising in its business, we have established a database 
to record information to allow us to determine if conflicts of interest exist. 

In this regard, and after you have read and signed the Corporation's Code of Conduct and Conflict 
of Interest Procedures (the "Code"), you must complete this statement (the "Disclosure 
Statement") by checking off the appropriate items below and supplying any additional information 
that may be required to: 

1. indicate whether you or any members of your immediate family (which for the purposes of 
this Disclosure Statement means your spouse (including your common law spouse, if any) 
and your respective (i) parents, their siblings and children, (ii) siblings and their children, 
(iii) children, and (iv) grandchildren, and/or (v) any person who lives with you on a 
permanent basis: 

(a) own or control through either direct or indirect ownership (other than ownership of 
5% or less of the shares of an issuing corporation) any interest in a corporation, 
partnership, or other entity or organization which has interests in any manner 
whatsoever in the plan to revitalize the Toronto waterfront or on other the 
Corporation activities; or 

(b) work, whether as agent, employee, officer, director, partner, consultant, advisor, 
provider of financial or technical support or assist in any capacity whatsoever, any 
corporation or other entity which has interests in any manner whatsoever in the 
plan to revitalize the Toronto waterfront or other the Corporation activities; and 

2. confirm whether you have directed, coordinated, or otherwise arranged for any contractual 
or financial commitment involving the Corporation or are involved in any manner 
whatsoever with plans or potential plans in being involved in any manner whatsoever in 
the plans to revitalize the Toronto waterfront or other the Corporation activities, whether 
as a partner, agent or otherwise, to be awarded to any corporation or other entity in which 
any member of your immediate family have an interest whether as owner, employee, 
officer, director, partner, consultant or advisor. 

If, after this form is completed, a change in circumstances occurs that would result in the 
information contained in this form being incorrect, you must promptly disclose this change in 
circumstances to the Chair of the Board of the Corporation, or his or her designee, and provide 
updated information as soon as possible. 

Page 68 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670614v3   

 

 - 16 -  

 

Please complete the following statements (as applicable) and sign where provided below:  

 

A. I have read this Code and agree to comply with its provisions. 

 

B. I was given the opportunity to discuss this Disclosure Statement with the Corporation's 
legal counsel.   

 
C. With respect to the matters in paragraph 1 above: 

_____ No, I confirm that neither I, nor any member of my immediate family, has 
any interest as described paragraph 1;  

or 

_____ Yes, as set forth on Schedule "A" to this Disclosure Statement, I and/or the 
following member(s) of my immediate family do have an interest as described in 
paragraph 1. 

 

D. With respect to the matters in paragraph 2 above: 

_____ No, I confirm that I have not coordinated, directed, otherwise arranged and 
am not involved in any matters in any of the capacities referred to in paragraph 2; 

or 

_____ Yes, as set forth on Schedule "A" of this Disclosure Statement, I have 
coordinated, directed otherwise arranged or am involved matters in the capacities 
referred to in paragraph 2. 

  

Page 69 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670614v3   

 

 - 17 -  

 

 

E. With respect to any Conflict of Interest, or potential Conflict of Interest, or other matter not 
specifically listed on this Disclosure Statement: 

 

 ____, I am not aware of any other circumstances that would constitute a 
Conflict of Interest or potential Conflict of Interest or other breach of this Code of 
Conduct; and/or 

 

 ____, the details of the Conflict of Interest or potential Conflict of Interest 
or other breach of this Code of Conduct, are set forth on Schedule "A" of this 
Disclosure Statement 

     
     
  

 
   

 Date    
  

 
   

 Signature   Witness Signature 
 

Page 70 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670619v3   

Draft February 24, 2021 

 

 
 
 
 

  
 

INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT 

OF 

TORONTO WATERFRONT REVITALIZATION CORPORATION 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 71 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670619v3   

 

 

Director and Officer Indemnification Agreement 
 
THIS INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made as of this _____ day of 
_________________________, 20___ between Toronto Waterfront Revitalization Corporation 
(the "Corporation"), a corporation continued under the Toronto Waterfront Revitalization 
Corporation Act, 2002 and _____________________________ (the "Indemnified Party"). 

RECITALS: 

A. The Board of Directors of the Corporation (the "Board") has determined that the 
Corporation should act to assure the Indemnified Party of reasonable protection through 
indemnification and insurance coverage against certain risks arising out of service to, and 
activities on behalf of, the Corporation to the extent permitted by law. 

B.  The Corporation is permitted to indemnify its directors and officers to the extent permitted 
herein. The Corporation considers it desirable and in the best interests of the Corporation to attract 
and retain the services of highly qualified individuals such as the Indemnified Party to serve as a 
director, officer and/or employee of the Corporation and to therefore enter into this Agreement to 
set out the circumstances and manner in which the Indemnified Party may be indemnified in 
respect of certain liabilities or expenses which the Indemnified Party may incur as a result of 
acting as a director or officer of the Corporation.  

C.  The Indemnified Party has agreed to serve or to continue to serve as a director, officer or 
employee of the Corporation subject to the Corporation providing the Indemnified Party with, as 
applicable, directors’ or officers' liability insurance and an indemnity against certain liabilities and, 
in order to induce the Indemnified Party to serve and to continue to so serve as a director, officer 
or employee of the Corporation, the Corporation has agreed to provide the indemnity in this 
Agreement.  

NOW THEREFORE the parties agree as follows: 

1. Indemnification.  The Corporation will, subject to Section 2, indemnify and save harmless 
the Indemnified Party and the heirs, beneficiaries, affiliates and legal representatives of the 
Indemnified Party to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law: 

1.1 from and against all Losses (as defined below) sustained or incurred by the Indemnified 
Party in respect of any civil, criminal, administrative, investigative or other Proceeding (as defined 
below) to which the Indemnified Party is involved in by reason of being or having been a director, 
officer or employee of the Corporation; and 

1.2 from and against all Losses sustained or incurred by the Indemnified Party as a result of 
serving as a director, officer or employee of the Corporation in respect of any act, matter, deed or 
thing whatsoever made, done, committed, permitted, omitted or acquiesced in by the Indemnified 
Party as a director, officer or employee of the Corporation, whether before or after the effective 
date of this Agreement and whether or not related to a Proceeding. 

"Expenses" means all expenses, costs, charges, professional fees and retainers and other 
expenses of whatever nature or kind, provided that any such costs, charges, professional fees 
and other expenses are reasonable.  

Page 72 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670619v3   

 

 - 2 -  
 

"Losses" means all Expenses, damages, liabilities, interest, judgments, fines, penalties, statutory 
obligations (including taxes) and settlements.  

"Final Judgment or Award" means a final judgment of an applicable court or final arbitration 
award of an applicable arbitration proceeding that has become non-appealable.  For certainty, a 
final judgment of an applicable court or final arbitration award of an applicable arbitration 
proceeding becomes non-appealable for the purposes of this Agreement if it is not appealed by 
the parties to this Agreement within the prescribed time period for appeal. 

"Proceeding" includes a claim, action, demand, suit, proceeding, inquiry, hearing, discovery, 
alternative dispute resolution mechanism, or investigation, of whatever nature or kind, whether 
threatened, reasonably anticipated, pending, commenced, continuing or completed, whether 
brought under federal, provincial, territorial, foreign or other law, and any appeal, and whether or 
not brought by the Corporation. 

2. Entitlement to Indemnification  

2.1 The rights provided to an Indemnified Party hereunder will, subject to applicable law, apply 
without reduction to an Indemnified Party provided that: (a) the Indemnified Party acted honestly 
and in good faith with a view to the best interests of the Corporation or other entity described in 
Section 2.3; (b) in the case of a criminal or administrative action or proceeding that is enforced by 
a monetary penalty, the Indemnified Party had reasonable grounds for believing that his or her 
conduct was lawful; and (c) in the case of claims by the Corporation for the repayment by the 
Indemnified Party or recovery by the Corporation of bonuses or other compensation received by 
the Indemnified Party from the Corporation, (i) the Indemnified Party did not violate applicable 
laws related to repayment by the Indemnified Party and recovery by the Corporation of bonuses 
or other compensation ("Compensation Laws") and (ii) there are no grounds upon which the 
Corporation is entitled, in accordance with any applicable employment and compensation policies, 
agreements and arrangements ("Compensation Arrangements"), to effect repayment or 
recovery of bonuses or other compensation received by the Indemnified Party from the 
Corporation. 

2.2 Subject to Section 2.1, this indemnity will not apply to (a) claims initiated by the Indemnified 
Party against the Corporation or any subsidiary, except for claims relating to the enforcement of 
this Agreement; and (b) claims initiated by the Indemnified Party against any other person or entity 
(except by way of defence in the case of claims against the Corporation or its officers, directors 
and employees) unless the Corporation or other entity described in Section 2.3 has joined with 
the Indemnified Party in or consented to the initiation of that Proceeding.  

2.3 The indemnities in this Agreement also apply to the Indemnified Party in respect of his or 
her service at the Corporation's request as (a) an officer, director or employee of another 
corporation or (b) a similar role with another entity, including a partnership, trust, employee benefit 
plan, joint venture or other unincorporated entity. For the avoidance of doubt, the indemnities in 
this Agreement also apply to an Indemnified Party in respect of his or her service at the 
Corporation's request as an officer, director or employee of, or a similar role with, any subsidiary 
of the Corporation, and to the Indemnified Party's Expenses relating to recovery under any Policy 
(as defined below).  

2.4 If prior court approval is required under applicable law in connection with any 
indemnification obligations of the Corporation under this Agreement, including but not limited to 
any claim for Expense Advances (as defined below), the Corporation will promptly seek at its sole 

Page 73 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670619v3   

 

 - 3 -  
 

expense and use all reasonable efforts to obtain that approval as soon as reasonably possible in 
the circumstances.  The Corporation will also pay the Expenses of the Indemnified Party, to the 
extent permitted by applicable law, in connection with any such approval process.  The obligations 
of the Corporation under this Section 2.4 will apply, subject to applicable law, even if the position 
of the Corporation on the substantive right to indemnification is or may be that the Indemnified 
Party is not entitled to same. 

2.5 If the Corporation proposes to deny all or part of any claim for indemnification hereunder, 
including but not limited to any claim for Losses or Expense Advances, by the Indemnified Party 
on the basis that (a) the conditions of Section 2 (other than Section 2.2) are not met, or (b) the 
amount for which indemnification is being sought is not reasonable, and payment of such claim 
does not require prior court approval under applicable law, the Corporation will: 

(i) promptly pay the indemnified amount claimed or, if the dispute concerns the 
reasonableness of the claim, pay the amount the Corporation, acting reasonably, 
believes to be reasonable in the circumstances, as if the Indemnified Party is 
entitled to indemnification hereunder, and 

(ii) bring the matter before an arbitrator in accordance with Section 12 or, if required, 
a court of competent jurisdiction, at its own expense and use all reasonable efforts 
to obtain a Final Judgment or Award determining the question of entitlement to 
indemnification or the reasonableness of the claim, as the case may be, as soon 
as reasonably possible in the circumstances. 

For certainty, the Corporation will continue to indemnify the Indemnified Party until a Final 
Judgment or Award on the Indemnified Party's entitlement to be indemnified or the 
reasonableness of the claim has been obtained. 

2.6 The Indemnified Party will repay any amount paid hereunder if it is determined in a Final 
Judgment or Award that the conditions of Section 2 are not met, or the amount for which 
indemnification is being sought is not reasonable, and the amount must be repaid.  Any amount 
to be repaid in accordance with the foregoing will bear interest from the date of advancement by 
the Corporation at the prime rate prescribed from time to time by the Canadian Imperial Bank of 
Commerce. 

3. Presumptions/Knowledge 

3.1 For purposes of any determination hereunder the Indemnified Party will be deemed to 
have acted honestly, in good faith, in the best interests of the Corporation, with reasonable 
grounds for believing his or her conduct was lawful and in accordance with Compensation Laws 
and Compensation Arrangements, and indemnification of the Indemnified Party under this 
Agreement will be deemed to be permissible under applicable law, unless and until a Final 
Judgment or Award has been rendered to the contrary.  The Corporation will have the burden of 
establishing the absence of honesty, good faith, failure to act in its best interests, lack of 
reasonable grounds for lawful conduct belief, or violation of Compensation Laws or Compensation 
Arrangements, or that indemnification is not permissible under applicable law, as the case may 
be. 

3.2 The knowledge or actions, or failure to act, of any other director, officer, agent or employee 
of the Corporation or any other entity will not be imputed to the Indemnified Party for purposes of 
determining the right to indemnification under this Agreement. 

Page 74 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670619v3   

 

 - 4 -  
 

3.3 The Corporation will have the burden of establishing that any Expense it wishes to 
challenge is not reasonable. 

4. Notice by Indemnified Party.  As soon as is practicable, upon the Indemnified Party 
becoming aware of any Proceeding which may give rise to indemnification under this Agreement 
other than a Proceeding commenced by the Corporation, the Indemnified Party will give written 
notice to the Corporation.  Failure to give notice in a timely fashion will not disentitle the 
Indemnified Party to indemnification, except and only to the extent that the Corporation 
demonstrates that the failure materially prejudiced the Corporation's substantive rights or 
defences in the Proceeding.  Upon receipt of such notice, the Corporation will give prompt notice 
of the Proceeding to any applicable insurer from whom the Corporation has purchased insurance 
that may provide coverage to the Corporation or Indemnified Party in respect of the Proceeding. 

5. Investigation by Corporation.  The Corporation may conduct any investigation it 
considers appropriate of any Proceeding of which it receives notice under Section 4, and will pay 
all costs of that investigation.  Upon receipt of reasonable notice from the Corporation, the 
Indemnified Party will, acting reasonably, cooperate fully with the investigation provided that the 
Indemnified Party will not be required to provide assistance that would prejudice: (a) his or her 
defence; (b) his or her ability to fulfill his or her business obligations; (c) his or her business or 
personal affairs or (d) the preservation of solicitor-client privilege or litigation privilege.  The 
Indemnified Party will, for the period of time that he or she cooperates with the Corporation with 
respect to an investigation, be compensated by the Corporation in an amount per day (or pro 
rated in the case of a partial day) equal to  $1000, plus out-of-pocket Expenses actually incurred 
by or on behalf of the Indemnified Party in connection therewith, provided that the Indemnified 
Party will not be entitled to the per diem if he or she is a full time employee of the Corporation on 
such day. 

6. Payment for Expenses of a Witness.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, to the extent that the Indemnified Party is, by reason of the fact that the Indemnified 
Party is or was a director, officer or employee of the Corporation or another entity, or acting in a 
capacity similar to a director, officer or employee of another entity, at the Corporation's request, 
a witness or participant other than as a named party in a Proceeding, the Corporation will pay to 
the Indemnified Party all out-of-pocket Expenses actually and reasonably incurred by or on behalf 
of the Indemnified Party in connection therewith.  The Indemnified Party will also be compensated 
by the Corporation at the rate of $1000 per day  ( or partial day, on a pro rated basis), provided 
that the Indemnified Party will not be entitled to the per diem in respect of any day on which he or 
she is a full-time employee of the Corporation. 

7. Expense Advances.  Subject to Section 2, the Corporation will, upon request by the 
Indemnified Party, make advances ("Expense Advances") to the Indemnified Party of all 
Expenses for which the Indemnified Party seeks indemnification under this Agreement before the 
final disposition of the relevant Proceeding.  Expense Advances may include anticipated 
Expenses.  In connection with such requests, the Indemnified Party will provide the Corporation 
with a written affirmation of the Indemnified Party's good faith belief that the Indemnified Party is 
entitled to indemnification in accordance with this Agreement, along with sufficient particulars of 
the Expenses to be covered by the proposed Expense Advance to enable the Corporation to 
make an assessment of its reasonableness (but without prejudicing any of his or her solicitor-
client privilege or litigation privilege).  The Indemnified Party's entitlement to such Expense 
Advance will include those Expenses incurred in connection with any Proceeding by the 
Indemnified Party against the Corporation seeking an adjudication or award pursuant to this 
Agreement.  The Corporation will make payment to the Indemnified Party within 10 days after the 

Page 75 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670619v3   

 

 - 5 -  
 

Corporation has received the foregoing information from the Indemnified Party.  All Expense 
Advances for which indemnification is sought must relate to Expenses anticipated within a 
reasonable time of the request. 

The Indemnified Party will repay to the Corporation all Expense Advances not actually required 
and will repay all Expense Advances if it is determined in a Final Judgment or Award that the 
conditions of Section 2 are not met.  If requested by the Corporation, the Indemnified Party will 
provide a written undertaking to the Corporation confirming the Indemnified Party's obligations 
under the preceding sentence as a condition to receiving an Expense Advance. The Indemnified 
Party will not be required to provide evidence of his or her ability to repay any Expense Advance 
or give security for his or her obligation to repay any Expense Advance.  

8. Indemnification Payments.  Subject to Section 2 and with the exception of Expense 
Advances which are governed by Section 7, the Corporation will pay to the Indemnified Party any 
amounts to which the Indemnified Party is entitled hereunder promptly upon the Indemnified Party 
providing the Corporation with reasonable details of the claim (but without prejudicing any of his 
or her solicitor-client privilege or litigation privilege). If the Indemnified Party is determined to be 
entitled under any provisions of this Agreement to indemnification by the Corporation for some or 
a portion of the Losses incurred in respect of any Proceeding but not for the total amount thereof, 
the Corporation will nevertheless indemnify the Indemnified Party for the portion thereof to which 
the Indemnified Party is determined by Final Judgment or Award to be so entitled.  

9. Right to Independent Legal Counsel.  If the Indemnified Party is named as a party or a 
witness to any Proceeding, or the Indemnified Party is questioned, or any of his or her actions, 
omissions or activities are in any way investigated, reviewed or examined in connection with or in 
anticipation of any actual or potential Proceeding, the Indemnified Party will be entitled to retain 
independent legal counsel of the Indemnified Party’s choosing at the Corporation's expense to 
act on the Indemnified Party's behalf to provide an initial assessment to the Indemnified Party of 
the appropriate course of action for the Indemnified Party.  The Indemnified Party will be entitled 
to continued representation by independent counsel at the Corporation's expense beyond the 
initial assessment unless the parties agree that there is no conflict of interest between the 
Corporation and the Indemnified Party that necessitates independent representation. 

10. Settlement.  The parties will act reasonably in pursuing the settlement of any Proceeding. 
The Corporation may not negotiate or effect a settlement of claims against the Indemnified Party 
without the consent of the Indemnified Party, acting reasonably; provided that if the Indemnified 
Party does not consent to a settlement of claims against the Indemnified Party, the Corporation 
may nonetheless effect the settlement without the consent of the Indemnified Party, and on behalf 
of the Indemnified Party, if the settlement is expressly stated to impose no liability on the 
Indemnified Party and to be without any admission of liability or wrongdoing by the Indemnified 
Party, and fully and finally releases the Indemnified Party from any liability in connection therewith.  
The Indemnified Party may not negotiate or effect a settlement of any Proceeding against the 
Indemnified Party independently of the Corporation, unless the Corporation has delivered written 
notice to the Indemnified Party stating that the Corporation will not indemnify the Indemnified 
Party in respect of the Proceeding under this Agreement. 

11. Directors' & Officers' Insurance.  The Corporation will ensure that its liabilities under 
this Agreement, and the potential Losses of the Indemnified Party that are subject to 
indemnification by the Corporation pursuant to this Agreement, are at all times supported by a 
directors' and officers' liability insurance policy or insurance program (collectively, the "Policy") 
that (a) has been approved by the Board, and (b) treats current and former directors equally and 

Page 76 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670619v3   

 

 - 6 -  
 

current and former officers equally (and if the Indemnified Party is an independent director, that 
treats the Indemnified Party equally as the most favourably insured of the Corporation's 
independent directors). Without limiting the Corporation's obligations to indemnify the Indemnified 
Party under this Agreement, the Indemnified Party acknowledges that the Policy may contain 
certain limits and exclusions that could result in the directors and officers covered by the Policy 
not having sufficient coverage. As may be required by the Policy, the Corporation will immediately 
notify the Policy's insurers of any occurrences or situations that could potentially trigger a claim 
under the Policy and will promptly advise the Indemnified Party that the insurers have been 
notified of the potential claim.  If the Corporation is sold or enters into any business combination 
or other transaction as a result of which the Policy is terminated and the Indemnified Party resigns 
or ceases to continue as an officer or director of the continuing entity, the Corporation will cause 
run off "tail" insurance to be purchased for the benefit of the Indemnified Party with substantially 
the same coverage for the balance of the 6-year term set out in Section 24 without any gap in 
coverage.  The Corporation will provide to the Indemnified Party a copy of each Policy providing 
the coverages contemplated by this Section promptly after coverage is obtained, and evidence of 
each annual renewal thereof, and will promptly notify the Indemnified Party if the insurer cancels, 
makes material changes to coverage or refuses to renew coverage (or any part of the coverage).  

12. Arbitration.  Except as otherwise required by applicable law, all disputes, disagreements, 
controversies or claims arising out of or relating to this Agreement, including, without limitation, 
with respect to its formation, execution, validity, application, interpretation, performance, breach, 
termination or enforcement will be determined by arbitration before a single arbitrator under the 
Arbitration Act, 1991 (Ontario).  The arbitrator will be selected by BDO Canada LLP having regard 
to the nature of the dispute (legal, financial or other). If BDO Canada LLP is unable or unwilling 
to determine the arbitrator, each of the Corporation and the Indemnified Party will propose one 
arbitrator, the two arbitrators will propose a third, and the arbitration will be conducted by the 
arbitrators so chosen. If the two arbitrators are unable to determine a third arbitrator, either party 
may apply to a court of competent jurisdiction for an order appointing a third arbitrator. The 
arbitrator will determine the rules for the arbitration, including, based on the outcome of the 
arbitration, the breakdown between the Corporation and the Indemnified Party of the costs for 
conducting the arbitration.   

13. Tax Adjustment.  Should any payment made pursuant to this Agreement, including the 
payment of insurance premiums or any payment made by an insurer under an insurance policy, 
be deemed to constitute a taxable benefit or otherwise be or become subject to any tax or levy, 
then the Corporation will pay any amount necessary to ensure that the amount received by or on 
behalf of the Indemnified Party, after the payment of or withholding for tax, fully reimburses the 
Indemnified Party for the actual cost, expense or liability incurred by or on behalf of the 
Indemnified Party.  However, the adjustment will not be made with respect to any compensation 
paid as a per diem to the Indemnified Party pursuant to Sections 5 or 6. 

14. Cost of Living Adjustment. The per diem payable pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 will be 
adjusted to reflect changes from the date of this Agreement in the All-items Cost of Living Index 
for the city of Toronto prepared by Statistics Canada or any successor index or government 
agency. 

15. Multiple Proceedings. No action or proceeding brought or instituted under this 
Agreement and no recovery pursuant thereto shall be a bar or defence to any further action or 
proceeding which may be brought under this Agreement.  

Page 77 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670619v3   

 

 - 7 -  
 

16. Governing Law.  This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the Province of Ontario 
and the federal laws of Canada applicable therein. 

17. Priority and Term.  This Agreement will supersede any previous agreement between the 
Corporation and the Indemnified Party dealing with this subject matter, and will be deemed to be 
effective as of the date that is the earlier of (a) the date on which the Indemnified Party first 
became a director, officer or employee of the Corporation; or (b) the date on which the Indemnified 
Party first served, at the Corporation's request, as a director, officer or employee, or an individual 
acting in a capacity similar to a director, officer or employee, of another entity. 

18. Severability.  If any term or other provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal or incapable 
of being enforced by any rule or law, or public policy, all other conditions and provisions of this 
Agreement will nevertheless remain in full force and effect so long as the economic or legal 
substance of this Agreement is not affected in any manner materially adverse to the Indemnified 
Party.  Upon such determination that any term or other provision is invalid, illegal or incapable of 
being enforced, the parties hereto will negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreement so as to 
effect the original intent of the parties as closely as possible in an acceptable manner to the end 
that the provisions of this Agreement are fulfilled to the fullest extent possible. 

19. Amendments.  No amendment, supplement, modification or waiver or termination of this 
Agreement and, unless otherwise specified, no consent or approval by any party hereto, is binding 
unless executed in writing by the party to be so bound.  For greater certainty, the rights of the 
Indemnified Party under this Agreement will not be prejudiced or impaired by permitting or 
consenting to any assignment in bankruptcy, receivership, insolvency or any other creditor's 
proceedings of or against the Corporation or by the winding-up or dissolution of the Corporation, 
and the liability of the Corporation under this Agreement shall not be affected, discharged, 
impaired, mitigated or released by reason of the discharge or release of the Indemnified Party in 
any receivership, insolvency or any other creditor's proceedings of or against the Corporation.  

20. Binding Effect; Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement will bind and enure to the 
benefit of the successors, heirs, executors, personal and legal representatives and permitted 
assigns of the parties hereto, including any direct or indirect successor by purchase, merger, 
consolidation or otherwise to all or substantially all of the business or assets of the Corporation.  
The Corporation will require and cause any successor (whether direct or indirect, and whether by 
purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) to all or substantially all of the business or assets 
of the Corporation, by written agreement in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the 
Indemnified Party, expressly to assume and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manner 
and to the same extent that the Corporation would be required to perform if no such succession 
had taken place.  Subject to the requirements of this Section 20, this Agreement may be assigned 
by the Corporation to any successor (whether direct or indirect, and whether by purchase, merger, 
consolidation or otherwise) to all or substantially all of the business or assets of the Corporation 
provided that no assignment will relieve the assignor of its obligations hereunder.  This Agreement 
may not be assigned by the Indemnified Party. 

21. Continuance.  The Corporation will give to the Indemnified Party 20 days' notice of any 
application by the Corporation for a certificate of continuance or the equivalent thereof in any 
jurisdiction, indicating the jurisdiction in which it is proposed that the Corporation will be continued 
and the proposed date of continuance.  Upon receipt of such notice, the Indemnified Party may 
require the Corporation to agree to such amendments to this Agreement as the Indemnified Party, 
acting reasonably, considers necessary or desirable in order to provide the Indemnified Party with 
a comprehensive indemnity under the laws of the proposed jurisdiction of continuance. 

Page 78 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670619v3   

 

 - 8 -  
 

22. Covenant.  The Corporation hereby covenants and agrees that it will not take any action, 
including, without limitation, the enacting, amending or repealing of any by-law, which would in 
any manner adversely affect or prevent the Corporation's ability to perform its obligations under 
this Agreement. 

23. Parties to Provide Information and Cooperate.  The Corporation and the Indemnified 
Party will from time to time provide such information and cooperate with the other as the other 
may reasonably request in respect of all matters under the Agreement. 

24. Survival.  The obligations of the Corporation under this Agreement, other than Section 11, 
will continue until the later of (a) the longest period contemplated by any applicable statute of 
limitations after the Indemnified Party ceases to be a director, officer or employee of the 
Corporation or any other entity in which he or she serves in a similar capacity at the request of 
the Corporation and (b) with respect to any Proceeding commenced prior to the expiration of the 
period referred to in subsection (a) with respect to which the Indemnified Party is entitled to claim 
indemnification hereunder, one year after the final termination of that Proceeding.  The obligations 
of the Corporation under Section 11 of this Agreement will continue for 6 years after the 
Indemnified Party ceases to be a director, officer or employee of the Corporation or any other 
entity in which he or she serves in a similar capacity at the request of the Corporation.   

25. Independent Legal Advice.  The Indemnified Party acknowledges that the Indemnified 
Party has been advised to obtain independent legal advice with respect to entering into this 
Agreement that the Indemnified Party has had sufficient opportunity to obtain such independent 
legal advice, and that the Indemnified Party is entering into this Agreement with full knowledge of 
the contents hereof, of the Indemnified Party's own free will and with full capacity and authority to 
do so. 

26. Execution and Delivery.  This Agreement may be executed by the parties in counterparts 
and may be executed and delivered by facsimile or other electronic communication and all such 
counterparts and facsimiles or other electronic documents together will constitute one and the 
same agreement. 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

Page 79 of 98



 
WSLEGAL\056537\00121\25670619v3   

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement. 

 

TORONTO WATERFRONT REVITALIZATION 
CORPORATION 

 

 

By:  

 Name: [●] 

Title: Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

 

 

  
Indemnified Party 

 

  

Name (please print) 

 

  

Witness 

 

  

Witness Name (please print) 

 

Page 80 of 98



 

1 

 

 

  

 

Purpose For information  

Areas of note/ 

Key issues 

This is an update to a report delivered on March 11, 2021 to the Investment and 
Real Estate Committee.  
  
On March 10, 2011, the Quayside Development Opportunity RFQ was released. 
The communications objectives for the RFQ rollout included generating 
awareness and excitement for the opportunity and driving traffic from local and 
international development teams to the RFQ. 
 
The rollout was considered in two stages: (1) conditioning the media landscape 
with a compelling vision for the Parliament Slip and (2) releasing the RFQ. Both 
announcements generated favourable traditional and social media coverage with 
pick-up of Waterfront Toronto’s key messages. Campaign elements included: 
 
Earned media (Parliament Slip and RFQ): news releases issued for both 
Parliament Slip and the RFQ, with the RFQ having international distribution: 

 Neutral to positive tone in coverage, solid message pull through  

 Parliament Slip: 1 print article, 14 online, 3 broadcast, 5 radio 

 RFQ: 4 print articles, 18 online, 3 broadcast interviews   
 
Paid Media (RFQ): placements with: 

 GlobalTenders.com (int'l): Featured Tender and home page listing 

 ULI (int'l): 110,000 newsletter subscribers 

 ArchDaily (int'l): 200,000 impressions over 30 days 

 Renew Canada (nat'l): 3,750 impressions, 3,500 newsletter subscribers 

 National Post: advertorial (Wed./Sat.) and online; 525,000 impressions 
 
Owned Media (RFQ): News release, backgrounder, renderings (WT newsroom 
and Quayside microsite), March 10-18 promotion across all channels including: 

 Newsletter eblast: 7,770 subscribers 

 LinkedIn: 3 posts, 19,716 impressions, 7% engagement rate (average: 6%) 

 Twitter: 7 posts, 59,584 impressions, 4% engagement rate (average: 4%)  

 Newsroom: 1,300 pageviews (Slip) and 1,000 (RFQ), both more than double 
previous announcements 

 Website traffic: more than doubled on both sites with notable increase in 
international traffic (LinkedIn and Twitter were responsible for largest volume 
of referrals to the newsroom and websites) 

 
Partners / Stakeholders (RFQ): Support across social channels through 
retweets, shares, likes and comments as well as original content posted by some 
stakeholders. Partner amplification helped us reach local and international 
markets including business and investment sectors. 

Next Steps 
The Paid Media campaign will run for approximately 3-4 weeks (based on 
impressions). Owned media (social) will be monitored and adjusted as needed to 
optimize effectiveness.  

 

                   Board of Directors Meeting  – March 25, 2021 
Item 7 – Communications update   

 Cameron MacKay 

Page 81 of 98

https://www.globaltenders.com/
https://www.archdaily.com/
https://www.renewcanada.net/feature/sponsored-torontos-new-quayside-development-will-build-a-bright-future/


RFQ Communications Rollout

The rollout was considered in two stages: 
1. Parliament Slip: vision for a world-class 

public destination for swimming, kayaking, 
boating, entertainment and dining

2. RFQ: a Dynamic, Inclusive and Resilient 
community that will play a pivotal role in  
reorienting the city to the lake

Page 82 of 98



RFQ Communications Rollout
Campaign Objectives: Generate awareness of, and excitement for, Quayside RFQ  

Campaign Goal: Increase RFQ downloads and submissions from experienced teams

Good coverage across 
major outlets, strong 
message pull through, 
neutral to positive tone

Increased traffic, strong 
impressions and 
engagement

Support and ongoing 
amplification

3–4-week campaign
driving traffic to Bonfire 
and QuaysideTO.ca

Page 83 of 98



 

1 
 

 

 

  

 

Purpose  For Information              

 

Areas of note/ 

Key issues 

The attached Slides consists of pictures and a video which illustrate the progress 
made on the Port Lands Flood Protection (PLFP) project as well as other 
construction projects undertaken by Waterfront Toronto (WT):  
 

 Cherry Street Stormwater Facility  

 T3 Bayside 

 Waterfront Innovation Centre 

 Aquabella  

 PLFP: Excavation in Spillway 95% Complete 

 PLFP: Reactive Treatment Layer 

 PLFP: Don Greenway Excavation 

 PLFP: Ice Management Area Excavation 

 PLFP: Soil Treatment & Reuse, StarX System & Stockpile Maintenance 

 PLFP: Cherry Street South Bridge Foundations 

 PLFP: Diaphragm Walls 
 

Next Steps Management will continue to provide updates on WT Priority Projects at the next 
Board meetings.   

 

                   Board of Directors Meeting  – March 25, 2021 
Item 8 – Waterfront Toronto Priority Projects – Construction update   

 David Kusturin 

Page 84 of 98



Priority Projects: Construction Update

1 Page 85 of 98



Cherry Street Stormwater Management Facility

2 Page 86 of 98



T3 Bayside

Image courtesy of Eastern Construction
3 Page 87 of 98



Waterfront Innovation Centre

4 Page 88 of 98



Aquabella

55

Photos: Urban Toronto users bilked (L) and skycandy (R)

Page 89 of 98



Port Lands Flood Protection

6 Page 90 of 98



Port Lands Flood Protection: Excavation in Spillway 95% Complete

7 Page 91 of 98



Port Lands Flood Protection: Reactive Treatment Layer

8 Page 92 of 98



Port Lands Flood Protection: Don Greenway Excavation

9 Page 93 of 98



Port Lands Flood Protection: Ice Management Area Excavation

10 Page 94 of 98



Port Lands Flood Protection: Soil Treatment & Reuse, StarX System
& Stockpile Maintenance

11 Page 95 of 98



Port Lands Flood Protection: Cherry Street South Bridge Foundations

12 Page 96 of 98



Port Lands Flood Protection: Diaphragm Walls

13 Page 97 of 98



1 
 

 
 
 
 

 
ON MOTION duly made by [●] and seconded by [●] and carried, it was RESOLVED that the 
Minutes of the Closed Session of the Board of Directors meeting held on February 23, 2021 
be approved, as tabled.  
 

 
 

Board of Directors Meeting 
March 25, 2021 

Item 15 – Draft Resolution Arising from the Closed Session 
 

 

Page 98 of 98


	Cover Page
	Agenda
	1.	Land Acknowledgement                                                         
	Land Acknowledgement Statement 

	2.	Motion to Approve Meeting Agenda                                  
	3.	Declaration of Conflicts of Interest
	4.	Chair’s Opening Remarks                                                   
	5.	Consent Agenda
	(a)  Highlights of Key Messages 
	(b) Draft - Minutes of Open Session of the Feb 23, 2021 Board Meeting
	(c) CEO Report 
	(d)  Finance, Audit and Risk Management (FARM) Committee Chair's Open Session Report 
	(e) Investment and Real Estate Committee (IREC) Chair's Open Session Report 
	(f) Human Resources, Governance and Stakeholder Relations (HRGSR) Committee Chair's Report 

	6.   Governance Documents Review
	Coversheet and Report  
	 A - Draft Revised FARM Committe Mandate 
	 B -  Draft Revised IREC Mandate 
	 C - Draft Revised HRGSR Committee Mandate 
	D - Draft Revised Confidentiality Agreement 
	 E - Draft Revised Code of Conduct 
	 F - Draft Revised D&O Indemnification Agreement 

	7.   Communications Update
	 Cover Sheet 
	Presentation

	8.   Waterfront Toronto Priority Projects - Construction Update  
	Coversheet 
	Presentation 

	9.  Motion to go into Closed Session 
	Closed Session Agenda
	14.  Motion to go into Open Session 
	Public Session Agenda
	15.  Resolution Arising from the Closed Session 
	Draft Resolution 

	16.	 Chair’s Closing Remarks                                                  
	17.  Motion to Terminate the Meeting

